Board of Commissioners Monthly Meeting
Monday, October 23, 2023, 4:30 PM
17661 Pilkington Road, Lake Oswego OR

AGENDA ITEMS

I Call to Order 4:30 PM

1. Public Comment (3 Minute Limit) 4:33 PM

1. Review and Approval of Minutes 4:34 PM
e September 25, 2023 Regular Board Meeting

V. General Manager’s Report 4:35 PM

V. Unfinished Business 4:45 PM

e Water Service Ordinance No. 19-01 Revision

e Resolution 2023-04: Signing Authority for Banking and Other
Financial Documents

e General Manager’s Annual Performance Review (Tabled
until November 2023 Meeting)

VI. New Business 5:10 PM
e Resilient Backbone and AC Pipe Replacement Program

VII. Executive Session 5:30 PM
Employee Relations, ORS 192.660(2)(b)

VIIl. Reconvene in Open Session 6:00 PM
IX. Chair Report 6:10 PM
X. Adjournment 6:15 PM

Upcoming Meetings
Regular Board Meeting: Monday, November 20, 2023 at 4:30 P.M.
Regular Board Meeting: Monday, December 18, 2023 at 4:30 P.M.

The public is welcome to attend the meeting in person or by calling 971-517-3083.
By calling into the phone bridge, you consent to being recorded.



CALL

T0

ORDER



https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.kissclipart.com%2Fjudge-clipart-gavel-judge-clip-art-95qqn8%2F&psig=AOvVaw2vpLAVaJxFsXXjppSyfLF0&ust=1603512148665000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCNiin7LqyewCFQAAAAAdAAAAABBN

PUBLIC

COMMENT




REVIEW & APPROVAL
OF MINUITES

JuiTeri e R e



https://www.google.com/url?esrc=s&q=&rct=j&sa=U&url=https://www.shutterstock.com/search/note%2Bpad%2Bcartoon&ved=2ahUKEwj8lIiLk87zAhWSIzQIHWsgAi0QqoUBegQIEBAB&usg=AOvVaw0J-ycDMr7Vh1beZr-839pa

Rivergrove Water District
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 25, 2023

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners was held on this day at 17661 Pilkington Road, Lake
Oswego. Chair Roth presided over the meeting and other attendees included: Commissioners Magura,
Patterson, and Howell as well as the General Manager. Commissioner Johnson was excused.

1. Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 4:32 p.m.
2. Public Comment: No public comment was received.

3. Auditor Report FY 2022/2023: Mr. Russell Ries, CPA, from Jarrad, Seibert, Pollard and Co attended the
meeting and presented the results of the Annual Audit. All financial accounting was in good order; the
District received a clean and unmodified opinion based on the cash basis of accounting. Mr. Ries
commented on how well the financial records were accurately maintained and noted all Oregon standards
were met and there were no adjusting entries required. Commissioner Magura stated the outstanding
audit results should be reflected in the minutes. Mr. Ries agreed and stated the audit results were fantastic.

Commissioner Patterson inquired whether Mr. Ries was aware of an incident where an employee, who was
a relative of the General Manager, was employed by the District. Mr. Ries noted he was aware of the
employment which occurred in FY 2021/2022. He stated he had reviewed the ethical standards and
determined there were no activities that impacted the financial operations. Mr. Ries stated since this
occurred in the FY 2021/2022 period, it was not relative to the current 2022/2023 audit. GM Casey noted
related party and/or related party transactions must be disclosed at the start of any audit and that these
were provided for both the 2021/2022 and 2022/2023 audits. Mr. Ries agreed this information is
mandatory and was provided. Mr. Ries emphasized once again that he reviewed the employment of a
relative occurring in 2021/2022 and did not feel there were any issues that impacted the financial
operations nor were there any indications additional financial disclosure needed to be reported to the State
of Oregon.

4. Review and Approval of Minutes: The August 28, 2023 Board meeting minutes were approved by a
motion from Commissioner Magura, seconded by Commissioner Howell, and passed unanimously.

5. Monthly General Manager’s Report: See attached.
6. Unfinished Business:

a. Water District Ordinance No. 19-01: The General Manager reported revisions are still ongoing and
requested this item be tabled.

b. Resolution 2023-04: Signing Authority for Banking and Other Financial Documents: Discussion
continued regarding granting signatory authority to the General Manager. The resolution was previously
presented and discussed at the August meeting where Commissioner Johnson made a motion to adopt the
resolution, seconded by Commissioner Magura. Commissioner Howell stated he wanted additional time to
review the financial policy resulting in the motion being tabled until the September meeting. As new
discussion ensued at this meeting, Commissioner Patterson objected to granting check signing authority to
the General Manager and Commissioner Howell stated he had concerns. Commissioner Magura stated he
had no concerns and considered it a reasonable action to take. Commissioner Howell requested he be



allowed to forward questions to Mr. Ries to obtain his professional opinion. Chair Roth stated she would
send an email to Mr. Ries with Commissioner Howell’s questions and the issue would be tabled until the
October meeting. Chair Roth asked Commissioner Howell to forward his questions by close of business
Friday, September 29, 2023.

c. General Manager’s Annual Performance Review: Chair Roth stated she had consolidated inputs
from Commissioners Johnson, Magura, and Howell as well as her own to create a draft copy of the annual
performance review. Chair Roth stated she had not received inputs from Commissioner Patterson which
she felt would eliminate her from participating in the review. Chair Roth stated the overall rating for the
annual performance report was a B. Commissioner Magura asked that comments from other Board
members be assembled by the specific category and distributed to the other Board members for review.
Commissioner Howell suggested the Board begin the evaluation process earlier in the year to ensure it is
completed by the end of the fiscal year. Commissioner Magura stated he believed the annual review should
be postponed due to the Board not addressing concerns the GM presented in December 2022 regarding
harassing and retaliatory actions by a current Commissioner. He believed the outstanding issues brought
forward by the General Manager would overshadow the review. The Board agreed to schedule an Executive
Session for the October Board meeting to discuss the concerns of the General Manager from December
2022. The Board agreed to postpone the General Manager’s annual review until the November Board
meeting. The motion was made by Commissioner Howell, seconded by Commissioner Magura, and passed
unanimously.

7. New Business: None
8. Chair Report: None.

9. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 6:31 p.m. The next regular meeting will be held on
Monday, October 23, 2023 at 4:30 p.m.

Grant E. Howell, Secretary Date

Christine K. Roth, Chair Date



General Manager’s
Report

Operations

Administrative/HR/Finance
@ a''>r

-




GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
October 2023

Capital Improvement Projects

- River Grove Elementary School Main Replacement
o All water related appurtenances have been installed and meet ORS requirements; District has no
further active involvement in this project and will advise LOSD as needed ECD: Closed

- Well No. 1 Generator Replacement Installation

o Tank protection has been received and installed; exhaust pipe venting shipped 10/19/23
Continuing to solicit bids for installation of bushes to screen generator; possible self-help project
Original Contract Completion Date: 7/31/23
Contract completion date w/Approved Changes: 12/31/23
Original Contract Price: $53,400
o Contract Price w/Approved Change Orders: $71,775

@)
(@)
@)
o

- 2022 Water Main Replacement Grant Project
o Aug/Sep engaged in conversations with Business Oregon to discuss status of $5.8M loan funding
o Recommend District reduce project scope while still making major impact to distribution system
o IFA Board will consider smaller funding allotment of $3M with project start date in Spring 2024

Water Operations

- Production versus Consumption Report

PRODUCTION versus CONSUMPTION

Month | Production | Consumption | Unaccounted | Unaccounted | Unaccounted Unit Loss Number | Revenue
(HCF) (HCF) Known Unknown % per Service of
(HCF) (HCF) Connection | Services
Oct 23 42,636 39,313 141 3,182 7.4% 2.3 1,383 $217,747
Aug 23 54,738 50,808 200 3,730 6.8% 2.7 1,383 $259,362
Jun 23 23,411 22,142 228 1,041 4.4% .75 1,382 $150,055
Apr 23 15,512 14,109 80 1,323 8.5% .95 1,382 $121,772
Feb 23 15,456 14,056 146 1,254 8.1% 91 1,383 $121,725
Dec 22 20,775 19,742 80 953 4.6% .69 1,383 $141,687
Oct 22 50,909 46,554 683 3,672 7.2% 2.7 1,383 $236,668

Anomalies: Chlorine Analyzers — 58 HCF, Leaks - N/A; Projects - 5525/5527 Childs Rd Main Replacement-12 HCF;
Triplett Wellman Hydrant Meter-7 HCF; Annual Hydrant Flushing (61)-64 HCF

- Backflow Testing Program
0 Total Connections: 564 0 Total Connections Passed: 561 o0 Compliance Percentage: 99.5%

- Customer Assistance Requests & On Call Duty
O Site visit requests: 52 0 Emergency callouts: 0

Finance/Administrative/HR

- District Facilities Tour
o Commissioners will tour District facilities October 23, 2023 at 2:00 pm

- Health/Dental Care Benefits Increase
o Employee health care benefits will increase $40.17 (10%) per employee/per month for 2024

- Employee Training Completed
o Clean Water State Revolving Fund: Analyzing & Adjusting Rates to Manage Debt Service (GM)
o Understanding Stop-Work Authority, Selecting Safety Footwear, Fire Prevention (All employees)




FINANCIAL REPORTS
$$959535395958S 9

Monthly Reconciliation Summary -
Checking, Deposit, and LGIP Accounts

Balance Sheet
Accounts Receivable Summary
Check Register
Revenue & Expense Budget vs Actual

Revenue & Expense by Class



Monthly Reconciliation Summary September 2023

Reviewed & Approved by Commissioners
Board Meeting: October 23, 2023

Bank QB's Bank Beginning Statement | | QuickBooks

Account Account| | Statement | | QuickBooks Ending Ending Uncleared
Name Number Date Balance Balance Balance Balance
Banner Bank (Checking Act) 1015 9/30/2023| | $174,690.75| | $333,620.70( | $318,363.40 $15,257.30
Banner Bank (Deposit Act) 1085 9/30/2023 $55,392.24 $55,660.46 $55,610.46 $50.00
LGIP (SDC) 1106 9/30/2023| | $426,771.37| | $428,395.44| | $428,395.44 $0.00
LGIP (Capital Improvement) 1107 9/30/2023| | $799,836.09| | $802,879.65| | $802,879.65 $0.00
LGIP ( Unemployment) 1108 9/30/2023 $35,984.92 $36,121.86 $36,121.86 $0.00
LGIP (Truck) 1109 9/30/2023 $31,968.89 $32,090.55 $32,090.55 $0.00
LGIP (Non-Restricted) 1110 9/30/2023| | $371,589.27| | $373,003.34| | $373,003.34 $0.00

Checks issued this period 9908 - 9922 from Banner Bank Act 1015

Checks voided this period: None




9:58 AM RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT

10/05/23 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of September 30, 2023
Sep 30, 23
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1015 - Checking - Banner Bank 332,216.55
1085 - Water Deposit-Banner Bank 55,660.46
1100 - LGIP
1101 - Restricted
1106 - System Development Account 428,395.44
1107 - Capital Improvement Account 802,879.65
1108 - Unemployment Account 36,121.86
1109 - Truck & Equipment Account 32,090.55
Total 1101 - Restricted 1,299,487.50
1110 - Non-Restricted 373,003.34
Total 1100 - LGIP 1,672,490.84
Total Checking/Savings 2,060,367.85
Total Current Assets 2,060,367.85
TOTAL ASSETS 2,060,367.85
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity
32000 - All Fund Balances 1,928,708.30
Net Income 131,659.55
Total Equity 2,060,367.85
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,060,367.85

Page 1



RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT

Accounts Receivable Summary |

From 08/10/2023 Through 10/05/2023

OPEN BALANCE Balance
-634.71 -634.71

BI-MONTHLY-Adjustment Amount Usage Count
WATER-RESIDENTIAL 366.79 18

Totals 366.79 0.00 18 26792
WATER Miscellaneous-RESIDENTIAL -90.00 2

Totals -90.00 0.00 2 -357.92
WAT .Penalty-RESIDENTIAL 15.00

Totals 15.00 0.00 30292
***Total Adjustment 291.79 0.00 27
BI-MONTHLY-Charge Minimum Overage Usage Count Total
WATER-RESIDENTIAL 71,945.08 178,938.42 48,923.00 1,384 250,883.50
WATER-COMMERCIAL 188.69 527.04 144.00 3 715.73
WATER-PUBLIC AUTHORITY 994.58 4,091.88 1,118.00 5 5,086.46
WATER-HOA IRRIGATION 670.87 2,836.50 775.00 9 3,507.37
WATER-ADULT CARE FACILITIES 143.26 237.90 65.00 2 381.16
WATER-CHURCH 97.83 36.60 10.00 1 134.43

Totals 74,040.31 186,668.34 51,035.00 1,404 260,708.65 260,365.73
***Total Charge 74,040.31 186,668.34 51,035.00 1,404 260,708.65
BI-MONTHLY-Penalty Amount Count
WATER-RESIDENTIAL 2,400.00 160
WATER-HOA IRRIGATION 15.00 1

Totals 2,415.00 161 262,780.73
***Total Penalty 2,415.00 161
BI-MONTHLY-Miscellaneous Amount Count
WATER Miscellaneous-RESIDENTIAL 855.00 37
WATER Miscellaneous-HOA IRRIGATION 20.00 1

875.00 38 263,655.73

Totals

10/05/2023 10:01:41 AM

AR Posting Summary

Page Number: 1



***Total Miscellaneous 875.00 38
BI-MONTHLY-Payment Amount Count Balance
WATER-RESIDENTIAL -244,392.97 1,404
WATER-COMMERCIAL -715.73 3
WATER-PUBLIC AUTHORITY -5,086.46 5
WATER-HOA IRRIGATION -3,537.37 9
WATER-ADULT CARE FACILITIES -381.16 2
WATER-CHURCH -134.43 1

Totals ~254,248.12 1,424 9,407.61
WATER Miscellaneous-RESIDENTIAL -670.00 2
WATER Miscellaneous-HOA IRRIGATION -20.00

Totals -690.00 2 8,717.61
WAT .Penalty-RESIDENTIAL -2,115.00 1
WAT .Penalty-HOA IRRIGATION -15.00

Totals -2,130.00 1 6,587.61
***Total Payments -257,068.12 1,427
BI-MONTHLY-Return Check Amount Count
WATER-RESIDENTIAL 169.07 1

Totals 169.07 1 6,756.68
***Total Return Check 169.07 1
BI-MONTHLY-Deposit Applied Amount Count
WATER-RESIDENTIAL -770.00 16

Totals -770.00 16 5,986.68
WAT .Penalty-RESIDENTIAL -30.00

Totals -30.00 5,956.68
***Total Deposit Applied -800.00 16

Closing Balance 5,956.68

10/05/2023 10:01:41 AM AR Posting Summary 2

Page Number:



10:04 AM

RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT

Gash Basis Check Register
As of September 30, 2023 .
Paid
Type Date Num Name Nemo Amount Balance

164,340.62
Check 09/01/2023 ACH AFLAC Monthly Health Premium -458.85  183,881.77
Depoesit 09/01/2023 Deposit Deposit 177.19 164,058,956
Deposit 09/01/2023 Deposit Deposil 7.275.87 171,334.83
Deposit 09/01/2023 Deposil Deposit 528,10  171,862,93
General Journal 0910112023 CC Customer Refund Customer Refund 50.00 171,912.93
General Journal 09/01/2023 CC Customer Refund Customer Refund 50,00 171,962.93
Deposit 09/01/2023 Deposit Deposit 1,623,456 173,486.38
Deposit 09/05/2023 Deposit Deposit 423,92 173,910.30
Deposit 09/05/2023 Deposit Deposit 332,34 174,242.64
Deposit 08/05/2023 Deposit Deposit 71.08 174,313.69
Deposit 09/05/2023 Deposit Deposit 453.72  174,767.41
Deposit 08/05/2023 Deposit Deposit 2,522.18 177,289.59
General Journal 09/05/2023 PR 09/02/23  Payrcll 8/20/23-9/2/23 Payroll 8/20/23-9/2123 -6,411.03  170,878.56
General Journat 09/05/2023 PR 09/02/23  Payroll 8/20/23-9/2/23 Payroll 8/20/23-9/2/23 -3,388.72 167,489.84
Check 09/05/2023 ACH PAYCHEX Payroll 8/20/23-9/2/23 -75.43  167,414.41
Check 09/05/2023 ACH WATER ENVIRONMENT SERVICES 18810 Hili Top Rd -15.80 167,398.81
Check 09/05/2023 ACH PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATICN INC Copier Service -297.00  167,101.81
General Journal 09/05/2023 PR 0%/02/23 Deferred Comp - 8/20/23-%2/23 Deferred Comp - 8/20/23-9/2/23 -1,454.68 165,647.13
General Journal 09/05/2023 PR 09/02/23  Deferred Comp - 8/20/23-9/2/23 Deferred Comp - 8/20/23-9/2/23 -279.43  185,367.70
Deposit 09/06/2023 Deposit Deposit 1,776.65 1B7,144.35
General Journal 09/08/2023 CC Customer Deposit Customer Deposit -50.00  167,094.35
Deposit 09/06/2023 Deposit Deposit 1,733.14  168,827.49
Deposit 09/07/2023 Deposit Deposit 325.37  169,152.86
General Journal 09/07/20223 CC Customer Deposit Customer Deposit -50.00 169,102.86
Deposil 09/07/2023 Deposit Deposit 3,865.57 172,868.43
Deposit 09/07/2023 Deposit Deposit 8,276.56 181,244.99
Deposit 09/08/2023 Deposit Deposit 350,72 181,595.71
Check 09/08/2023 ACH Streamline Websile Fee ~126.00  181,469.71
Deposit 09/08/2023 Deposit Deposit 7,303.84 188,773.55
Deposit 09/08/2023 Deposi Deposit 88,407.41  287,180.96
Deposit 091172023 Deposit Deposit 35467.02 322,647.98
Deposit 09/11/2023 Deposit Deposit 22298 322,870.96
Deposit 09/11/2023 Deposil Deposit 332.42 323,203.38
Deposit £9/11/2023 Deposit Deposit 7,094.41  330,287.79
Deposit 09/11/2023 Deposit Deposit 863.04  331,190.83
Deposit 09/12/2023 Deposit Deposit 471.97  331,662.80
General Journal 09/12/2023 GG Customer Chargeback Customer Chargeback -168.07  331,483.73
General Journal 09/12/2023 CC Customer Refund Customer Refund 60.00 331,543.73
Deposit 091212023 Deposit Deposit 1,459.74  333,003.47
Check 09/12/2023 ACH VERIZON WIRELESS Monthly Service -389.95 332,613.52
Deposit 09/13/2023 Deposit Deposit 1,382.11  333,995.63
Check 09/13/2023 ACH KAISER FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN Monthly Health Premium -3,461.84  330,533.79
Deposit 09/14/2023 Deposit Deposit 443,57 330,977.36
Check 09/15/2023 ACH VANCO Payment Solutions Monthly Service Fee -66.50  330,910.86
Deposit 09/15/2023 Deposil Deposit 555.86  331,466.72

Page 1 of 3



10:04 AM
10/06/23
Cash Basis

Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Ceposit
General Journal
Deposit

Check

General Journal
Check

General Journal
General Journal
General Journal
General Journal
Check

Deposit
Deposit

Check

Check

Check

Check

Check

Check

Deposit
Deposit
Deposit

Check

Check

Check

Deposit

Check

Check

Check

Check

Check

Check

Deposit
General Journal
General Journal
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit
Deposit

09/16/2023
09/45/2023
09/15/2023
0941612023
0911512023
09/15/2023
09/15/2023
0971872023
081182023
09/18/2023
09/18/2023
09/18/2023
09/18/2023
09/19/2023
09/19/2023
09/19/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
0912012023
082072023
0872072023
0B/20/2023
002072023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
D9/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
092072023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
09/20/2023
092172023
09/21/2023
09/22/2023
08/2212023
09/22/2023
00/25/2023
09/25/2023
09/2512023
09/26/2023

cC

CCR
ACH
PR 09116123
PR 09/16/23
PR 09/16/23
PR 09/16/23
ACH

9908
9909
9910
9911
g912
9913

9914
9g15
9916

9917
9918
9019
9820
09021
9922

CcC
cC

RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT
Check Register

As of September 30, 2023

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Customer Refund

Deposit

Service Charge

PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION INC
PAYCHEX

Payroll 9/3/23-9/16/23

Payroll 9/3/23-9/16/23

Deferred Comp - 9/3/23-6/16/23
Deferred Gomp - 9/3/23-9/16/23
PGE

Deposit

Deposit

SOUND TELECOM

Jarrad, Seibert, Pollard & Co. LLC
THOMAS GREGOIRE

ONE CALL CONCEPTS, INC,
PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION INC
CPAWC

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

CONTINENTAL UTILITY SCLUTIONS
Control Systems NW, LLC

River Grove, LL.C

Deposit

Clackamas County Finance Depariment
RH2 Engineering, inc.

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

OHA Cashier

Deposit

Customer Refund

Custemer Refund

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Peposit

Customer Refund

Deposit

Service Charge

Reverse of ACH voided

Payroll 9/3/23-9/16/23

Payroll 9/3/23-9/16/23

Payroil 9/3/23-9/16/23

Deferred Comp - $/3/23-9/16/23
Deferred Comp - 9/3/23-9/16/23
Monthly Eiectric Fees

Deposit

Deposit

Answering Service Monthly Fee
Audit FY 2022/2023

Utilities

Monthly Service

Security Upgrades

Dues for Fiscal Year 2023/2024
Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

ACH Activation Fee

SCADA and Integrator Services
Rent - October 2023

Deposit

Annual Atert Notification System
Engineering Services
Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Cross Connection Specialist
Deposit

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Deposit

Deposit

Depos#

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

1.163.37
3,624.29
57.00
1,650.60
50,00
468,25
-145.49
452.59
-75.43
-5,342.23
-3,458.68
-1,434.11
-324.00
-4.922.40
042,73
142.00
-271.81
-3,125.00
-160.3¢
-58.80
-128.25
-1046.00
703.77
175,76
233,05
6,00
-3,988.50
-1.401.83
188.00
-200.00
-2,341.50
-163.69
-23.78
-1.97
-97.60
564,40
50.00
50.00
796.01
225.48
40.00
129.97
1,842.40
1,897.83
243.64
193.56
350.59
2,343.78

332,630.09
336,254.38
336,311.38
337,961.38
338,011.38
338,472.83
338,334.14
338,786,732
338,711.30
332,369.07
328,910.39
327 A476.28
327,162.28
322,229.88
323,172.61
323,314.61
323,042.80
318,017.80
319,767.41
319,688.61
319,670.36
319,470.36
320,174.13
320,349.89
320,582.94
320,576.94
316,588.44
315,186.61
315,374.61
316,174.61
312,833.11
312,679.42
312,655.64
312,653.67
312,656.17
313,120.57
313,170.57
313,220.57
314,016.58
314,242.06
314,282,086
314,412.03
316,254.43
318,152.26
318,395.60
318,580.46
318,940.06
321,283.83

Page 2 of 3




10:04 AW
10/05/23
Cash Basis

Deposit

Check

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit
General Journal

Deposit

09/26/2023
00/26/2023
09/28/2023
09/28/2023
09/29/2023
09/29/2023
09/29/2023
09129/2023
09129/2023
09f29{2023

ACH

CC

RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT
Check Register

As of September 30, 2023

Deposit

CHEVRON AND TEXACC CARD
Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Customer Refund

Deposit

Deposil

Monthly Fuel Charges
Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Deposit

Customer Refund

Deposit

205.00 321,488.83
203,24 321,285.49
265.30  321,550.88
20068  321,751.57
21531  321,086.88
500.00 322,465,88
9,062.00 331,528.88
432,61  331,961.49
50,00  332,011.48
20506 332,216.55

167,875.93  332.216.56 -
T167,875.95  532,216,55

Page 3 of 3



10:32 AM RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT

10/05/23

Cash Basis Revenue & Expense Budget vs. Actual

July 2023 through June 2024

Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 - Income
4005 - Water Sales & Charges 366,003.65 1,100,000.00 -733,996.35 33.27%
4010 - Water Deposit Fee 2,000.00 5,000.00 -3,000.00 40.0%
4015 - New Service Fee 50.00 200.00 -150.00 25.0%
4020 - Installation Fee 550.00 2,000.00 -1,450.00 27.5%
4024 - Pre-Application Meeting Fee 500.00 1,000.00 -500.00 50.0%
4026 - Development Security Deposit 10,938.20 6,000.00 4,938.20 182.3%
4030 - Delinquent & Restoration Fee 5,990.00 12,000.00 -6,010.00 49.92%
4035 - SDC Chgs-SDC Restricted Cl Fund 8,212.00 10,000.00 -1,788.00 82.12%
4056 - Bank Interest/LGIP Interest
4058 - Banner - Water Dep Interest Ear 630.68 900.00 -269.32 70.08%
4059 - LGIP - Non Restrict Int Earn 4,129.20 3,500.00 629.20 117.98%
4064 - SDC Interest-LGIP Cl Fund 4,767.71 10,000.00 -5,232.29 47.68%
4065 - Cl Interest -LGIP Cl Fund 9,094.81 12,000.00 -2,905.19 75.79%
4066 - LGIP-Int Earn Unemployment Fund 399.87 500.00 -100.13 79.97%
4067 - LGIP-Int Earn Truck&Equip Fund 355.25 600.00 -244.75 59.21%
Total 4056 - Bank Interest/LGIP Interest 19,377.52 27,500.00 -8,122.48 70.46%
4090 - Miscellaneous Income 6,413.47 1,000.00 5,413.47 641.35%
Total 4000 - Income 420,034.84  1,164,700.00 -744,665.16 36.06%
Total Income 420,034.84  1,164,700.00 -744,665.16 36.06%
Gross Revenue 420,034.84  1,164,700.00 -744,665.16 36.06%
Expense
5000 - Personnel Services
5001 - Compensation
5020 - Administrative Wages 38,553.70 145,000.00 -106,446.30 26.59%
5040 - Operator Wages 29,405.01 135,000.00 -105,594.99 21.78%
5090 - Deferred Compensation 4,699.97 28,000.00 -23,300.03 16.79%
Total 5001 - Compensation 72,658.68 308,000.00 -235,341.32 23.59%
5100 - Payroll Tax Expense 8,797.37 35,000.00 -26,202.63 25.14%
5200 - Payroll Benefits
5210 - Workers' Compensation 2,007.96 4,000.00 -1,992.04 50.2%
5220 - Health Benefits 9,025.85 92,000.00 -82,974.15 9.81%
5235 - Employee Recognition 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
5240 - Wellness Benefit 0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0%
Total 5200 - Payroll Benefits 11,033.81 97,600.00 -86,566.19 11.31%
Total 5000 - Personnel Services 92,489.86 440,600.00 -348,110.14 20.99%
6000 - Material Services
6001 - Administration/Billing/Overhead
6005 - Property/Liability Insurance 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%
6006 - Furn & Office Equipment - Admin 0.00 3,400.00 -3,400.00 0.0%
6007 - Bank Service Charges
6008 - Banner - Check Bank Charges 518.63 1,250.00 -731.37 41.49%
6010 - Vanco Service Charges 250.50 1,250.00 -999.50 20.04%

Page 1 of 3



10:32 AM
10/05/23
Cash Basis

6012 - LGIP-SDC Ser Charges-Cl Fund

RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT

Revenue & Expense Budget vs. Actual
July 2023 through June 2024

6013 - LGIP-CI Ser Chg-Cl Fund
Total 6007 - Bank Service Charges

6018 -
6019 -
6020 -
6025 -
6030 -
6035 -
6045 -
6050 -
6060 -
6065 -
6070 -
6075 -
6080 -
6090 -
6095 -
6096 -
6099 -

Meeting/Food Expense

Office Supplies, Equip, Repair
Postage & Shipping

Printing & Duplicating
Publications & Elections

Rent

Telephone - Admin

Mileage Expenses

Continued Education

Dues & Subscriptions

Fees, License, & Permits
Water Deposit Refunds

Water Sales Overpay

Meter Reading

Utilities/Office

Development Review Deposit Ref

Contracted Services - Admin

6099-0 - Billing
6099-1 - Copier IT
6099-2 - Personnel
6099-3 - Website

Total 6099 - Contracted Services - Admin
Total 6001 - Administration/Billing/Overhead
6101 - Operation & Maintenance

6100 -
6105 -
6110 -
6120 -
6125 -
6130 -
6135 -
6155 -
6160 -
6165 -
6170 -
6185 -
6190 -
6195 -

General Repair & Maintenance
Utilities

Small Tools & Equipment

Water Testing

Truck Maintenance

Gas & Oil

Telemetry/Scada

Chemicals

Contracted Services-Operations
PPE/Safety Equipment

Mobile Radio Phone/Pager Operat
Operations -Computer/Equipment
Cross Connect Program Supplies

Meters

Total 6101 - Operation & Maintenance

6202 - Professional Services

6208 -
6209 -

Auditor

Consultants

Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
0.00 1.00 -1.00 0.0%
0.30 1.00 -0.70 30.0%

769.43 2,502.00 -1,732.57 30.75%
29.00 1,000.00 -971.00 2.9%
44.91 2,000.00 -1,955.09 2.25%

0.00 1,800.00 -1,800.00 0.0%

274.00 1,500.00 -1,226.00 18.27%

11.73 2,000.00 -1,988.27 0.59%
4,205.49 18,000.00 -13,794.51 23.36%
2,861.68 12,000.00 -9,138.32 23.85%
0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0%
218.00 5,000.00 -4,782.00 4.36%
1,348.74 6,000.00 -4,651.26 22.48%
1,355.40 7,500.00 -6,144.60 18.07%
1,264.94 5,000.00 -3,735.06 25.3%
263.48 1,500.00 -1,236.52 17.57%
1,230.87 6,000.00 -4,769.13 20.52%
473.28 2,500.00 -2,026.72 18.93%
0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
1,180.25 7,500.00 -6,319.75 15.74%
1,408.66 15,000.00 -13,591.34 9.39%
0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
378.00 1,800.00 -1,422.00 21.0%
2,966.91 29,300.00 -26,333.09 10.13%
17,317.86 147,602.00 -130,284.14 11.73%
7,065.95 40,000.00 -32,934.05 17.67%
14,093.19 45,000.00 -30,906.81 31.32%
6,710.45 2,500.00 4,210.45 268.42%
675.00 4,000.00 -3,325.00 16.88%
0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
827.31 3,500.00 -2,672.69 23.64%
3,988.50 10,000.00 -6,011.50 39.89%
0.00 4,200.00 -4,200.00 0.0%
2,869.71 15,000.00 -12,130.29 19.13%
120.49 2,000.00 -1,879.51 6.03%
1,169.53 5,000.00 -3,830.47 23.39%
0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
2,226.68 5,000.00 -2,773.32 44.53%
39,746.81 140,700.00 -100,953.19 28.25%
6,125.00 8,000.00 -1,875.00 76.56%
0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%

Page 2 of 3



10:32 AM
10/05/23
Cash Basis

July 2023 through June 2024

6210 - Engineering (Non-Reimbursable)
6215 - Legal Fees (Non-Reimbursable)

Total 6202 - Professional Services
Total 6000 - Material Services
7000 - Operating Capital Outlay
7010 - Tool/Equipt/Vehicles/Safety-CO
7020 - Source of Supply, Pumping-CO
7040 - Fire Protection & Fire Flows-CO
Total 7000 - Operating Capital Outlay
8000 - Debt Recov./Capital Improvement
8451 - CI-Standby Power CI Fund
8454 - SDWL#1 Install Pmt CI-Cl Fund
8455 - SDWL #2 Install Pmt CI-Cl Fund
8457 - Cl Dist.Main Projects
8461 - SDC -Standby Power-Cl Fund
8464 - SDWL#1 Install Pmt SDC-CIF
8465 - SDWL #2 Install Pmt SDC-CIF

8467 - Water Main Replacement Projects
Total 8000 - Debt Recov./Capital Improvement

Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
9100 - Other Income
9115 - Transfer In - Capital Improve
9120 - Transfer In - Unemployment
9125 - Transfer In - Truck & Equipment
Total 9100 - Other Income
Total Other Income

Net Other Income

Net Income

RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT
Revenue & Expense Budget vs. Actual

Jul '23 - Jun 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

10,468.00 150,000.00 -139,532.00 6.98%

4,257.50 15,000.00 -10,742.50 28.38%

20,850.50 177,000.00 -156,149.50 11.78%

77,915.17 465,302.00 -387,386.83 16.75%

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
42,878.82

0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

42,878.82 40,000.00 2,878.82 107.2%

80,845.11 0.00 80,845.11 100.0%

0.00 15,361.00 -15,361.00 0.0%

0.00 61,945.00 -61,945.00 0.0%

0.00 300,000.00 -300,000.00 0.0%

9,890.14 0.00 9,890.14 100.0%

0.00 38,054.00 -38,054.00 0.0%

0.00 71,073.00 -71,073.00 0.0%

0.00 32,700.00 -32,700.00 0.0%

90,735.25 519,133.00 -428,397.75 17.48%

304,019.10  1,465,035.00 -1,161,015.90 20.75%

116,015.74 -300,335.00 416,350.74 -38.63%

0.00 200,000.00 -200,000.00 0.0%

0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

0.00 208,000.00 -208,000.00 0.0%

0.00 208,000.00 -208,000.00 0.0%

0.2 208,000.00 -208,000.2 0.0%

116,015.74 -92,335.00 208,350.74 -125.65%

Page 3 of 3



UNFINISHED BUSINESS



https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.123rf.com%2Fphoto_10746486_senior-businessman-cartoon-illustration.html&psig=AOvVaw0RNtRuJaf2DQj1qX1rtxVT&ust=1610223332178000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCKitr8aTje4CFQAAAAAdAAAAABBB

SECTION 1.
SECTION 2.
SECTION 3.
SECTION 4.
SECTION 5.
SECTION 6.
SECTION 7.
SECTION 8.
SECTION 9.

SECTION 10.

SECTION 11.
SECTION 12.
SECTION 13.
SECTION 14.
SECTION 15.
SECTION 16.
SECTION 17.
SECTION 18.
SECTION 19.
SECTION 20.
SECTION 21.
SECTION 22.

SECTION 23.

SECTION 24.

Rivergrove Water District
WATER SERVICE ORDINANCE NO. 23-01

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PURPOSE. oo eeeeeseeeeseee e s eee s eees s seeeeseesesse s 1
DEFINITIONS. ......ovooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeseeees e eesssee e 1
SYSTEM OWNERSHIP. ......coovveereeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeeseseeseeeseeesseeeeseeeeeseeeeseesseeeeee 4
WATER SYSTEM OPERATION. ......ccoomivvoeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseeeeeeseseeeeees 4
RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY OF THE DISTRICT. .....c..coveevvecrernreeeenns 5
USE OF WATER......covvoeeeoeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo eeseoe e 5
FURNISHING WATER. ....coovveeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeeeees e eesesseeseseeseesessseeees 5
WATER SERVICE APPLICATION AND CONNECTION..........coomrvvvcreerrrreenns 6
DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE BY CUSTOMER..........coovervverereereereenrres 7
DELINQUENCIES AND SUBSEQUENT SHUT OFF OF WATER
SERVICE BY DISTRICT. ...ccouiveeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeeeseeeeseeeseeeeseessseseeeseeesseeseeeeeee 8
TERMINATION OF WATER SERVICE BY DISTRICT. .......vvveeoerreecreereereenns 9
REGULAR SERVICE. ......couivveeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeseeeeeeeseeeseeeseeeeseeseeeesseesesesseesesessees 10
EXTRATERRITORIAL WATER SERVICE. ......c.oovooeooooveeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeens 10
BULK WATER SERVICE. .......ocoovoeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeseeseeeeseeeeesesseeseseesees 10
FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE. ......ccmiovvoreemeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeee e 11
CONTRACTS/SPECIAL SERVICES.........ovecereeeeeeeeeeeessseeeeeeseseeeeeeseseseeeesseneeee 11
INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE. ......coovvooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeseeeee e 11
PRESSURE REGULATION. .....cooovoeeieeeeseeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseeeeeeeseeeeeeeeseseeseeseseesees 12
LEAKAGE WITHIN PREMISES. .......ovvovvooieooeeeeeseeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeee s 12
SERVICE CONNECTIONS........oovcomieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeesseeseeesesseseesesesseeeesneeee 12
METERS. ..o e eeeee e eeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeee e 13
MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND TESTING OF METERS AND
MAINS. oo ee e seeeeeeeeeeeeeeeses oo 144
CROSS-CONNECTIONS OR PHYSICAL CONNECTIONS WITH
OTHER WATER SUPPLIES. ......covvoeoeeoeeeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeoeeseeeeeeseseeeeeeeeseeee 14

WATER FACILITIES IN GENERAL AND MAIN EXTENSIONS. .................. 17



SECTION 25.

SECTION 26.
SECTION 27.
SECTION 28.
SECTION 29.
SECTION 30.
SECTION 31.
SECTION 32.
SECTION 33.
SECTION 34.
SECTION 35.
SECTION 36.
SECTION 37.

SECTION 38.

OBLIGATION TO CONSTRUCT WATER FACILITIES; SECURITY;
ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS......ccccooiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiicicecieee 188
CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS. ...ttt 19
WATER MAIN EXTENSION-COST REFUND......cccccccoiviiiiiiiniiiiiiiiicicee 20
ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES, RATES AND CHARGES. ........ccccciiiiiiin. 20
WATER SERVICE CHARGES; WATER USAGE CHARGES.......................... 22
METER READING AND BILLING. ..cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeceeeeceese e 22
ADJUSTMENTS OF ACCOUNTS. ..ottt 22
PROHIBITED CONDUCT. ..ottt 24
VARIANCES . ...t 26
ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL. ..o 26
COLLECTION OF ACCOUNTS....c.oiiiiiiiiiiiiieiceeeeeeeeeee e 27
MISCELLANEQOUS PROVISIONS. ...t 27
REVISION AND MODIFICATION OF RULES, REGULATIONS AND
CHARGES. ..o 28

PRIOR ORDINANCES REPEALED......cccccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicceceee 28



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

Rivergrove Water District
WATER SERVICE ORDINANCE NO. 23-01

THIS ORDINANCE ESTABLISHES REGULATIONS FOR THE DISTRICT WATER SYSTEM,
AUTHORIZES WATER SERVICE FEES AND CHARGES, ADOPTS MEASURES FOR THE
COLLECTION OF FEES AND OTHER MATTERS PERTAINING THERETO, AND REPEALS
ORDINANCE NO. 19-01. THE RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. PURPOSE.

0} The District is a municipal corporation organized as a domestic water supply district under
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 264, whose primary purpose is to supply potable water
within the confines of the District or without, in the manner approved by the Board, and in
accordance with applicable law.

2) The purpose of this Ordinance is to authorize charges, rates, and fees for the use of the
District’s water system, to regulate the use of District water, to regulate the construction,
maintenance, and operation of the System, to provide for discontinuance of service, to regulate
connections to the System, and to provide for collection of charges.

3) The District finds the operation and maintenance of the System and a portion of the costs of
construction of the System should be funded through water service and Usage Charges imposed
against those Persons and activities using or receiving service from the System.

“) This Ordinance imposes charges for use of the System and for services of all kinds provided
by the District rather than levy taxes upon property.

Q) This Ordinance authorizes a Cross Connection Program designed to provide maximum
protection of the District’s public water supply from the possibility of Contamination or pollution
by isolating, within a Customer’s internal distribution system(s) or a Customer’s water line, such
contaminants or pollutants that could Backflow into the public water System.

(6) The District has authority to adopt this Ordinance pursuant to ORS Chapter 264.

@) Nothing in this Ordinance shall be interpreted to conflict with ORS Chapter 264. In the case
of conflict, ORS Chapter 264 governs.

3 This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Water Service Ordinance.”

Section 2. DEFINITIONS.!

1) “Active Account” means an open account with current Water Service Charge, Usage
Charge, and Deposit Charge assessed.

?2) “Appurtenance to the Distribution System” means any additional plumbing and/or
Backflow Prevention Assembly added to the Service Connection in order to comply with ordinance
regulations.

I All definitions specified here are Capitalized within the document.



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

3) “Auxiliary Water Supply” means any supply of water used to augment the public water
supply which serves the Premises in question.

4) “Backflow” means the flow in the direction opposite to the normal flow of water or the
introduction of other liquids, mixtures, or substances into the distributing pipes of the District’s
Potable Water Supply. Backflow is caused by back siphonage or backpressure.

5 “Backflow Prevention Assembly” means an assembly designed to prevent Backflow,
including but not limited to the following: “Double Check Valve Backflow Prevention
Assembly” or “Double Check Assembly” or “Double Check” or “DCA” consisting of two
independent operating check valves, which are spring-loaded or weighted. The assembly comes
complete with a shutoff valve on each side of the checks as well as test cocks to test the checks for
tightness.

(a) “Double Check-Detector Backflow Prevention Assembly (DCDA)” means a
specially designed assembly composed of a line size approved Double Check Assembly
with a bypass containing a specific water Meter and an approved Double Check Assembly.

(b) “Reduced Pressure Backflow Prevention Assembly” or “RP Assembly” or
“RPBA” means an assembly containing two independently acting approved check valves
together with a hydraulically-operated, mechanically independent pressure differential relief
valve located between the check valves, and at the same time, below the first check valve.

6) “Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the District, the District’s governing body.

@) “Bulk Water Service” means the limited duration use of water supplied from a fire hydrant
pursuant to a Bulk Water Service permit issued by the District.

@3 “Construction Standards, Specifications, and Details means published documents that
define the common specifications, methods, and procedures that shall be used for all development
and construction within the District.

&) “Contamination” means the entry into or presence of any physical, chemical, biological, or
radiological substance or matter which may create a Health Hazard in the District’s water supply
System.

(10) “Cross Connection” means a point in the Customer’s plumbing or District System where
the public Potable Water Supply is connected to directly or has the potential of being connected to a
non-potable substance.

(11)  “Cross Connection Program” means the administrative and technical procedures the
District implements to protect the District System from @ontamination via Cross Connection as
required by OAR 333-061-0070.

(12)  “Cross Connection Program Director” means the Board-authorized employee or agent in
charge of the cross-connection program.

(13)  “Curb Stop” means the valve owned by the District that controls water running from the
District’s Distribution Main to the Meter.

(14) “Customer” means any Person provided water by the District.

(15) “Customer’s Water Line” means the pipe, valves, and fittings leading from the water
Meter into and including the Premises served.



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

(16) “Degree of Hazard” means either pollution (Non-Health Hazard) or Contamination (Health
Hazard) and is determined by an evaluation of hazardous conditions within the System.

(17) “Deposit Charge” means the charge assessed to a Customer with an Active Account.

—

(19) “Discontinuance” is the term to describe when a District Customer voluntarily ends service
or a temporary transfer of service between property owners and tenants, and where the Customer’s
account is closed, and a final bill is sent as described in Section 9.

(20) “Distribution Main” means the pipe in the street, alley, right-of-way, or easement owned
and maintained by the District for the purpose of distributing water to Customers and servicing fire
hydrants.

(21) “District” means Rivergrove Water District.

(22) “Fee in Lieu of Performance” means a lump sum payment in the amount of a projected
cost, which is certified by a registered engineer and approved by the District’s engineer, that a
developer would pay for the costs of Distribution Main extensions, upgrades, and water facilities
required as a condition of approval of development.

(23) “Health Hazard” (Contamination) means an impairment of the quality of the water that
could create an actual hazard to the public health through poisoning or through the spread of disease
by sewage, industrial fluids, waste, or other substances.

(24) “Meter” means a device owned by the District and used for measuring the flow of water to
a particular Premises.

(25) “Meter Box” means an in-ground enclosure owned by the District which houses the Meter.

(26) “Non-Health Hazard” (Pollution) means an impairment of the quality of the water to a
degree that does not create a hazard to the public health, but does adversely affect the aesthetic
qualities of such water, for example taste and odor, for potable use.

(27) “Person” means and includes any natural person, firm, partnership, association, or
corporation.

(28) “Point of Use” means the point at which the actual or potential Cross Connection exists.

(29) “Point of Use Isolation” means the appropriate Backflow prevention in the Customer’s
Water Line at which the actual or potential Cross Connection exists.

(30) “Potable Water Supply” means water supplied by the District intended for human
consumption and other domestic use.

(31) “Premises” means any building, structure, improvement, or parcel of land, which may now
or at some future time receive water service from the District.

(32) “Service Connection” means the piping connection by means of which water is conveyed
from a Distribution Main to the Customer’s property line or to the service Meter.

(33) “Shut Off” means suspension of water service pending payment of delinquent charges or
compliance with District regulations.

(34) “System” means all or any part of the water system owned and operated by the District and
includes but is not limited to all reservoirs, wells, pumping stations, treatment plants, transmission



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

and Distribution Mains, lateral lines, service lines, Service Connections, Meters, Meter Boxes,

B P ey et saenIbiies. firc hydrants, and all related water system facilities and

appurtenances.
(35) “Termination” means permanent disconnection of water service account.

(36) “Thermal Expansion” means the pressure increase due to a rise in water temperature that
occurs in water piping systems when such systems become "closed" by the installation of a
Backflow Prevention Assembly or other means, and will not allow for expansion beyond that point
of installation.

(37) “Transmission Main” means the pipe in the street, alley, right-of-way, or easement owned
and maintained by the District for the sole purpose of distributing water from District pumping
stations and wells to water storage facilities.

(38) “Usage Charge” means the charge for the amount of water delivered to the Customer’s
Premises.

(39) “Variance” means a request to or decision by the Board to vary or alter any requirements of
this Ordinance.

(40) “Vault” means an enclosure used to protect Meters, valves, or similar devices.

(41) “Water District General Manager” means the Person appointed by the Board as the Water
District General Manager or the District employee, employees, or agent whom the Water District
General Manager may designate to carry out all or portions of the administration of this Ordinance.

(42) “Water Service Charge” means the charge assessed to fund the District’s System
operation, maintenance, and administration costs, including without limitation, Meter reading,
preparing bills, accounting for receipt of payment, maintaining Customer records, and responding to
Customer inquiries.

Section 3. SYSTEM OWNERSHIP.

The water System is owned by the District. None of the District’s properties or System
facilities may be disposed of without Board approval. Legal title to the entire System is vested in
the District and shall be operated only by duly authorized District employees, personnel,
contractors, and agents. The District shall at all times have the exclusive jurisdiction, possession,
and control of the System.

Section 4. WATER SYSTEM OPERATION.

1 No Person other than the duly authorized agents of the District or contractors with express
written permission from the District shall connect to any main or service of the System or interfere
with the operation of any of the System facilities whatsoever. No Person shall be permitted to
install, move, change, tamper with, or in any other manner interfere with a Service Connection,
water Meter, Curb Stop, or Appurtenances of the District System.

2) No Person other than an employee or authorized agent of the District shall turn on or off any
Meter, Service Connection, Curb Stop, or operate any valves, which are part of the System.
Customers shall install a master shut-off valve as close to the Meter location as practical, the
operation of which will control the entire water supply to the Customer from the service. Operation
by any Customer of the Curb Stop ipis prohibited. In the event a Customer damages



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

a Curb Stop, the Customer shall be liable to the District for the associated reasonable expenses
incurred for repair of the Curb Stop.

3) No Persons other than duly authorized District agents or contractors and members of
regularly constituted fire departments shall operate fire hydrants. The fire department shall be
permitted to connect and use fire hydrants for the express purpose of fighting fires or testing in
accordance with such procedures as the District shall establish.

Section 5. RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY OF THE DISTRICT.

1 ORS Chapter 264 sets forth the Domestic Water Supply District statutes. These statutes set
forth all District responsibilities and liabilities. This Ordinance may limit the non-mandatory
responsibilities authorized under Chapter 264.

2) The District shall operate, maintain, and repair the System so as to keep it in good repair and
operative condition at all times insofar as practical and reasonable, and in accordance with
budgeting restrictions.

3) The District shall not be liable for damages due to interruptions of water service or
variations in water pressure.

“) By making application for water service or by using water service supplied by the District,
every Customer shall be deemed to grant to the District, its duly authorized agents, and its
employees, the right to enter upon the concerned Premises to which water is furnished at all
reasonable times for the purposes of inspection for compliance with this Ordinance and for Meter
reading.

Section 6. USE OF WATER.

1 The District shall furnish water for all statutorily authorized purposes consistent with its
water rights and the reasonable capacity of its System.

?2) The Board may, by resolution, institute a program of water rationing or conservation. Such
program may consist of limitations on the use of water as to hours, purpose, or manner. The District
shall give preference to uses determined to be in the best interests of public health, welfare or
necessity, and highest priority to household use which shall not include irrigation of lawns or fields.

3) Customers may use water only in compliance with District rules, regulations, ordinances,
and state law. Prohibited conduct is set forth in Section 32.

Section 7. FURNISHING WATER.

1 The District shall not be obligated to furnish and install System facilities for all properties
and Premises within the District. The District shall, so far as reasonable and practicable and within
its financial means, provide adequate source of supply, necessary Transmission Mains, Distribution
Mains, storage facilities, and other improvements to make water service generally available to all
areas within the District which are consistent with the District’s Capital Improvement Plan.

2) The cost to replace Transmission Mains and Distribution Mains that are included in the
District’s adopted System Development Charge (“SDC”) Capital Improvement Plan shall be paid
from funds in the District’s SDC account. Pursuant to Section 24 of this Ordinance, such mains not
in the Capital Improvement Plan shall be replaced and upgraded by adjacent property owners or



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

developers at their cost at the time of development or redevelopment of a property for which the
developer seeks water service.

Section 8. WATER SERVICE APPLICATION AND CONNECTION.

1) A prospective Customer shall apply for District water service using District-supplied
application forms.

?2) For billing purposes, the District may presume the owner of property is the applicant. Except
as otherwise provided, water service or Usage Charges shall be mailed to the Customer at the
address of the Premises where water service is furnished. The District may also mail a separate bill
to the owner of leased Premises if such request is submitted in writing.

3) Application for new water service to developing or redeveloping properties shall be
provided at or after a pre-application conference is scheduled and held between the applicant and
the District staff, at which the application and connection requirements and conditions will be
identified and discussed with the applicant. No water service will be provided until the District
approves the application, all conditions of approval have been met, and all outstanding charges have
been paid to the District.

4) New and existing water service Customers shall provide the following information to the
District:
(a) The name of all prospective Customers, and, if applicable, the owner;
(b) The location of the Premises for which the service is requested;
(c) Requested date for the initiation of water service;
(d) The address to which all bills shall be sent;
(e) For property transactions, the date of close of escrow;
® Whether the prospective Customer(s) is (are) the owner or tenant of the Premises;
(® 5
(h) Applicant’s contact information _ email, address, and home, cellular, and

work telephone numbers. With the approval of the Water District General Manager,
alternative contact information may be provided by the applicant; and

i) Minimum emergency contact information for the applicant’s water account including
the Person’s name, phone, email, address, and relationship to the Customer.

5) To complete the application process, the applicant shall execute a Customer Service
Agrcement A BHOVIGEAHIFHORMARIGEA G HSEBROMENG : cornnit o abide by all ruls,

regulations, and ordinances of the District and such other terms as the District may determine
necessary. It is the responsibility of the Customer to keep Customer information current.

(6) An applicant for new water service must pay all applicable deposits and fees before the
District will commence water service. These fees may include but are not limited to those set forth
in Section 28.

(a) At the time a written application is made for water service, applicant shall pay to the
District a fee sufficient to cover the cost of the installation in accordance with schedules
established by the District. After such installation is made, the facilities shall be the property
of the District.

(b) The District requires new water service applicants to deposit such sum of money as
the District determines necessary to guarantee payment of charges for water service to the



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

Premises of the prospective Customer. Such deposit, less deduction for unpaid Water
Service Charges and water Usage Charges, will be repaid to the depositor without interest
upon Discontinuance or Termination of service. Deposits made to the District for new
accounts shall be classified as restricted monies and kept separate from other District funds.

@) The District shall keep Customer identifying information confidential to the extent required
by the Oregon Public Records Law and other applicable state and federal law.

t)) All water service accounts shall be in the names of all adult occupants of the Premises. Two
or more Persons who apply for one water service account shall be jointly and severally liable for all
applicable charges. Where the address of each Person is indicated as the same, separate bills need
not be sent.

9) The District may Shut Off water service if service to the Premises is turned on without first
completing the District application process and paying all required fees. In addition to other
remedies provided by these regulations, before service is restored following Shut Off pursuant to
this section, the Customer shall pay double the applicable rate for the quantity of water consumed as
determined by the District.

(10) Where service to Premises is provided, charges imposed and billed, and such charges have
remained unpaid and the account has become delinquent, in addition to other remedies provided by
this Ordinance and state law, the District may require the following as a condition of providing
future water service to that Premises:

(a) For leased Premises where the tenant’s account has become delinquent and the
tenant vacates the Premises without satisfying Water Service Charges previously incurred,
before the Premises are provided future water service, the owner shall satisfy the
outstanding Water Service Charges and Usage Charges or submit a joint application with the
future tenant and shall be jointly and severally liable for all applicable charges.

(b) The District may refuse to provide service to any Premises where the Person to
whom service has been provided has failed to pay previously imposed Water Service
Charges and Usage Charges until such unpaid charges are paid in full.

(11) If a Premises does not have a Meter, the District must install the equipment before
commencing water service. The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of related
Installation Fees set forth in Section 28 of this Ordinance.

Section 9. DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE BY CUSTOMER.

1 Customers of property connected to the water System may discontinue further water service
pursuant to this section. If notice of Discontinuance is not given as provided in this Section, the
Customer shall remain liable for all Water Service Charges to the served Premises.

2) A Customer discontinuing service shall notify the District at least 72 hours prior to
Discontinuance with the following information: the Customer’s name, the date of Discontinuance,
the name of the property owner, the name of the new occupant of such Premises, if known, and a
forwarding address for the final bill. If the Customer does not notify the District of their
Discontinuance and moves from the Premises, that Customer will remain liable for any Water
Services Charges and Water Usage Charges until notification is received.

A3) The District will make a final Meter reading on the date of Discontinuance in accordance
with posted business hours.



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

“4) The District will temporarily suspend water deliveries to the Premises at a Customer’s
request (for example in case of extended absence from the property). However, temporary
suspension of Water Service Charges by a Customer is not permitted. Water Service Charges will
be billed and shall be paid by the Customer in order to remain on regular service. If the charges are
not paid, water service will be Shut Off or terminated, as appropriate, consistent with Section 10
and Section 11 of this Ordinance.

5 Rental property owners shall be responsible for monthly Water Service Charges, Water
Usage Charges, and Deposit Charges during any period when the property is vacant and those
charges are not otherwise paid by the Customer or tenant discontinuing service.

Section 10. DELINQUENCIES AND SUBSEQUENT SHUT OFF OF WATER SERVICE
BY DISTRICT.

1) Water Service Charges shall be due and payable on the date of billing and become
delinquent if not paid by the 10th of the following month. If a Customer does not make prompt
payments of Water Service Charges, the account shall be delinquent and water service to the
Customer may be Shut Off in accordance with the procedures set forth in this section. In addition,
the District may use any other remedies available to it under Oregon law.

(a) The District shall establish the date and time that water service will be Shut Off and
provide written notification to the Customer not less than five (5) business days prior to the
date of Shut Off, unless otherwise stated herein. Written notification shall consist of one of
the following: a letter, direct delivery of written notice in the form of a door hanger notice,
or any other means of communication deemed appropriate by the District.

2) The written notification provided to Customer under this section shall state the following:

(a) Water service will be Shut Off due to nonpayment of Water Service Charges;
(b)  Water service Shut Off may be avoided by paying delinquent charges;

(¢) A specific date and time when water service will be Shut Off unless delinquent
charges are first paid,

(d) No personal checks will be accepted to pay delinquent charges; delinquent charges
must be paid by credit card payments through the District website, money order, or cashier’s
check in order to avoid Shut Off of water service; and

(e) The Customer should call the District’s office at 503-635-6041 if payment has
already been made or if they have any questions concerning the water charges.

3) Water service Shut Off shall not occur less than five (5) business days from the date
notification is provided.

) The District shall Shut Off water service to Customer and/or Premises for any of the
following reasons:

(b) The Customer’s account has become delinquent.

(c) The Customer has failed to provide new Customer information, pay the required new
account deposit, and return a signed Customer Service Agreement.

(d) The Customer is found in violation of mandatory water rationing or conservation. In
this instance, Shut Off will be effective immediately upon written District notification to the
Customer.



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

(e) The Customer has failed to complete, sign, and return a water use survey required
under Section 23 of this Ordinance.

® The Customer has failed to conduct a required passing annual test of a Point Of Use
Backflow Prevention Assembly.

(2) Where after written notification from the District, the Customer has failed to
discontinue use of all Cross Connections and to physically separate Cross Connections. In
this instance, Shut-Off will be effective immediately upon written District notification to the
Customer. This may include direct delivery of written notice in the form of a door hanger
notice.

(h) The Customer is in violation of any rule, administrative regulation, or ordinance of
the District and where the Customer has failed, after five (5) days’ written notice, to
comply with such rule, regulation, or ordinance.

(i) The Premises demand for service is greatly in excess of past average or seasonal use
or where excessive demand for such Premises may be detrimental or injurious to the water
service furnished to others or results in inadequate service to others.

5 Customers contacting the District prior to the Shut Off date can negotiate an appropriate
payment arrangement with the District to satisfy all delinquent charges.

(6) On the District designated date and time for Shut Off, Customer shall be liable to the District
for a notification and dispatch fee, and water service shall be Shut Off and remain Shut Off until:

(a) All Water Service Charges and all applicable fees are paid in full to satisfy the
charges and fees due the District.

(b) A passing, annual test of a Point Of Use Backflow Prevention Assembly is provided
to the District.

@) All delinquent Water Service Charges and fees must be paid to the District online, by mail,
or in person at the District office. No personal checks will be accepted to pay delinquent charges.
Delinquent charges must be paid online by credit card, money order, or cashier’s check to avoid
Shut Off of water service or to restore water service.

)] Where service has been Shut Off involuntarily, the District will only restore service to
Premises during posted business hours.

9 The failure of the District to Shut Off water service for any reason, including the non-
payment of Water Service Charges due, shall not constitute a waiver by the District to take such
action in the future or to take other lawful steps to collect amounts owed. It shall also not relieve the
owner of the Premises or Customer from the obligation and duty to pay for all such charges,
whether or not the owner or Customer has knowledge of any delinquent charges.

Section 11. TERMINATION OF WATER SERVICE BY DISTRICT.

(1) The District shall Terminate water service to Customers and/or Premises whose accounts
have become delinquent, and the account is not brought current within ninety (90) days of Shut Off
pursuant to Section 10.

2) In addition to any other remedy provided by District ordinance or state law, the District may
terminate water service to a Customer for noncompliance with any provision of this Ordinance.



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

Noncompliance with this Ordinance means failure or refusal to remedy a violation or a repeated
violation for which written notice or warning of such violation has been given either by delivery in
person, by posting on the property, or by delivery confirmation from the United States Postal
Service. If such noncompliance affects matters of health or safety or the security of the System, or
other conditions warrant such actions, such as wasteful or improper use of water, the District may
Shut Off or terminate water service immediately.

3) The failure of the District to Terminate water service for any reason, including the non-
payment of Water Service Charges due, shall not constitute a waiver by the District to take such
action in the future or to take other lawful steps to collect amounts owed. It shall also not relieve
the owner of the Premises or Customer from the obligation and duty to pay for all such charges,
whether or not the owner or Customer has knowledge of any delinquent charges.

“4) A Terminated water service can be restored to regular service only within the first year
following Termination after all Water Service Charges from Termination date and any outstanding
previous charges are paid in full. After one year from Termination, water service will only be
restored upon the application for and creation of a new account and payment of all applicable
deposits and fees including installation and reinstatement fees.

Section 12. REGULAR SERVICE.

Where a Service Connection and Meter have been lawfully installed, regular service shall be
provided upon application and payment of all charges. The date of initiation of regular service to a
Customer shall be the date of completed installation as determined by the District.

Section 13. EXTRATERRITORIAL WATER SERVICE.

The District does not provide extraterritorial water service to properties outside of the
District boundary. Owners of properties outside the District boundary would be required to annex
into the District to acquire water service. The District would serve them if water is available with
unassisted fire flow (no pumps) which meets required fire flows, and if adequate capacity is
available. The annexation would be at the discretion of the Board unless the Board refers the
question to the District Customers for a vote.

Section 14. BULK WATER SERVICE.

1) Where available, a contractor or property owner may request Bulk Water Service through a
fire hydrant by means of a hydrant Meter. Operation, use, and water usage tracking of all District
hydrants shall be in accordance with bulk water use procedures as the District shall establish.

2) A Person requesting Bulk Water Service shall pay a permit fee to the District before rental
of such Meter. Charges for water furnished through a hydrant Meter shall be established by District
resolution.

A3 If a hydrant Meter or other equipment is damaged during the period in which equipment is
used, the Customer will reimburse the District the cost of replacement or labor and materials of
making necessary repairs. If, in the District’s sole discretion, the repair costs are found to exceed the
replacement cost, the Customer shall pay the replacement cost only.

“4) Upon Termination of Bulk Water Service, the District’s Meter shall be returned to the
District. The District shall, without further notice, terminate Bulk Water Service six months (6) after
such service is provided unless Customer submits and District approves an extension.

10



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

5 Customers of Bulk Water Service shall do so only pursuant to a valid permit and shall
produce or display such permit at any time upon request by District personnel.

Section 15. FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE.

1) Fire protection facilities, including fire hydrants and stand-by fire protection systems, will
be allowed under the following conditions:

(a) Upon written application and payment in advance of the cost of such service to the
District, the District may install fire hydrants. The size, location, type, and other factors
involved with hydrants shall be governed by District construction standards and Fire
Marshal requirements. A letter of approval or approved plans from the Fire Marshal shall be
submitted prior to District approval of hydrant plans.

(b) Where a fire hydrant is installed on private property, the installation shall be in
conformity with the construction standards of the District.

(c) Any Customer requesting service for a stand-by fire protection system shall furnish
and install a service Meter and appropriate Backflow Prevention Assembly approved by the
District. Service line and Meter sizes for such systems shall be as recommended by the
Customer’s engineer and the Fire Marshal, and approved by the District. Charges for stand-
by fire protection service shall be adopted by District resolution.

(d) The Service Connection and all equipment appurtenant thereto, including the Meter,
shall be the sole property of the District.

2) The District may relocate fire hydrants at the Customer’s written request and expense,
subject to approval by the District and Fire Marshal.

3) The District has no responsibility for loss or damage due to a lack of adequate water supply
or water pressure for fire protection.

Section 16. CONTRACTS/SPECIAL SERVICES.

1) The District’s provision of water service, connected as a result of application made and
accepted by the District, is a contract by which the Customer(s) agrees to abide by all rules and
regulations as are in effect at the time of connection, or as may be adopted or modified thereafter by
the Board, and to pay all Water Service Charges in a timely manner.

?2) Whenever a Customer’s requirements for water service are unusual, large, or subject to great
fluctuation or variation, the District may require the Customer to agree to a special contract and may
require reasonable security satisfactory to the District sufficient to protect the District against loss
and to guarantee performance under the terms thereof. All special contracts shall be in writing, and
signed by the property owner or Customer and the District.

Section 17. INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE.

1) The District from time to time must interrupt Customers’ water service for System
maintenance and improvement, including repairing and connecting mains, making main extensions,
repairing valves, pumps, and control devices, etc., and for cleaning, maintaining and reconditioning
reservoirs and storage tanks.

2) The District shall, whenever feasible to do so, give Customers advance notice whenever it is
known that service is to be interrupted for any appreciable length of time. However, failure to give

11



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

such notice shall in no manner cause the District to become liable for loss or damage caused by
service interruptions such as bursting of boilers, the breakage of any pipes or fixtures, stoppage or
interruptions of water supply, business interruptions, or any other damage resulting from the
shutting off of water.

3) It is the policy of the District to provide adequate potable water to its residents. There may
be circumstances beyond the District’s control, however, including most particularly weather
conditions and the effects of natural catastrophe or the actions of others on the District’s water
supply sources, that make it necessary to reduce the water regularly used by the District’s
Customers and apportion among the District’s Customers a restricted supply of water. In those
circumstances, the District will apportion water in a manner that is consistent with the relevant
provisions of this Ordinance, determined by the District to be equitable under the circumstances,
and considers public health and safety.

Section 18. PRESSURE REGULATION.

1) Insofar as is reasonably possible, feasible, and economical for the District to do so, the
District will furnish water at desirable pressures. In locations in which service pressures are higher
than needed or desired by Customers, Customers may install and maintain pressure regulators
within their Premises plumbing.

?2) The District shall not be responsible for damages or difficulties experienced by reason of
variations in pressure within the System.

Section 19. LEAKAGE WITHIN PREMISES.

1) Customer Water Lines shall be installed, maintained, and repaired in accordance with
District construction standards, jurisdictional plumbing code requirements, and good engineering
practices. Pipes shall be laid no less than 24 inches deep and provided with stop valve and waste
drainage; all standpipes or fittings of any kind must be so located, anchored, and installed so as to
not interfere with or endanger the District’s service Meter. It is the Customer’s responsibility to
protect their pipes from freezing.

2) The District shall not be responsible for any damage or injury for leaking or the running of
water on the Premises from pipelines, plumbing fixtures, open faucets, valves, fixtures, and hoses
beyond the District’s service Meters.

Section 20. SERVICE CONNECTIONS.

1) No Person shall excavate, fill, dig up, cut, or otherwise alter any street, sidewalk, curb,
gutter, or do any other such work in order to install a water Service Connection, Meter, or service
line, or connect to the System without completing an application, paying applicable fees, and
obtaining a permit in writing from the District. An installation permit shall not be issued until the
applicant has obtained and supplied the District copies of all necessary road opening, development
and/or building permits from applicable jurisdictions.

2) Service Connections shall be installed in accordance with current District construction
standards relating to size, material, and location.

3 The District may relocate services at the Customer’s written request and expense, subject to
approval by the District.

12



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

“4) When, in the judgment of District personnel, unusual conditions exist that require extra
fittings, Meter Boxes, Vaults, or other safeguards to assure adequate volume and pressure of water
to an individual service and/or to minimize repair and maintenance problems inherent in the
installation, the District may require the Customer to pay the associated costs at customary District
charges in addition to the usual Meter and service installation charges.

Q) Customers requesting larger than normal Service Connections for additional fixtures, fire
protection, or other services that necessitate an expansion of water mains to accommodate increased
flow shall be required to pay the cost of improving and upsizing any Distribution Mains needed to
supply the required flow.

(6) Except as authorized by the District, a separate Service Connection and Meter shall be
required for each building, residential unit, or structure. Separate residences permitted under
hardship provisions are no exception to this rule. For nonresidential uses, separate Service
Connections and Meters shall be provided for each structure and or special uses such as landscape
irrigation and public parks.

@) Service Connections to a building or Premises containing multiple or mixed commercial or
industrial uses shall be furnished through the number and sizes of Meters determined by the
District. Each case shall be considered separately based upon the water demands of the Customer.

)] If a Service Connection to any Premises is terminated by the Customer or by the District, the
District may remove the service and/or Meter. Pursuant to Section 11 of this Ordinance, should a
Service Connection be requested at a later date more than one year after Termination, the service
shall be considered new, and the applicant shall pay installation and reinstatement fees as provided
in the District approved rates and fees.

Section 21. METERS.

(1) All Meters, including those for fire protection service, shall be located within the public
right-of-way or within an access easement approved by the District.

2) All Meters, Meter Boxes, fittings, and service lines extending from the main to the Meter
location shall be installed by the District or subject to the District’s approval and inspection.




Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

—

(6) Where a single house is built with an existing _ and Meter, the District
will install a larger Meter upon payment of all costs for labor, materials,
and SDC upgrade fee.

7 Customers desiring a new or modified service shall contact the District office to make
proper arrangements. The District may relocate Meters at the Customer’s written request and
expense, subject to approval by the District.

t)) The service line from the main to the Meter as well as the Meter, Meter Box, Curb Stop, and
Appurtenances shall be the property of the District and not of the Person owning the Premises or
paying for the installation.

9 The Customer owns and is responsible for all water service piping from the Meter and any
piping within the Premises.

Section 22. MAINTENANCE, REPAIR AND TESTING OF METERS AND MAINS.

1) The District, at its expense, shall perform normal maintenance and repair of the Service
Connection, including the Meters, Meter Boxes, and Appurtenances to the Distribution System.

2) Each Customer is required to use reasonable care and diligence to protect the water Meter,
Meter Box, Curb Stop, and Appurtenances to the distribution System from loss or damage by
freezing, hot water, traffic hazards, landscaping obstructions, and other causes. If the Customer fails
to provide reasonable protection, the Customer shall pay to the District the full amount of the
resulting damage prior to District repair or replacement.

3) Customers shall not permit encroachments (e.g., plants, trees, fences, walls, structures, etc.)
within the water service line easements to hinder the free access to water mains, water Meters,
Meter Boxes, or Appurtenances to the System. All water service line easements shall remain readily
accessible to the District for purposes of construction, reconstruction, maintenance, and repair of
lines therein. Upon notification from the District, the Customer shall remove encroachments in a
timely manner. Should the Customer fail to remove the encroachments, the District shall remove
them and the Customer shall be liable to the District for costs incurred.

“4) Upon written Customer request, the District will test the Customer’s Meter. If the Meter
tests within 95% to 104% of true flow, the Customer shall be charged for the cost of removing,
testing, and installing the same or any new Meter. If the tested Meter under-registers water flow by
more than 6% or over-registers by more than 4%, the new Meter will be installed for the Customer
at no charge. If the tested Meter over-registers the flow by more than 4%, the Customer’s account
will be credited for the overbilling for the previous four months or two billing periods. This billing
credit shall be determined based upon the percentage the Meter over-registers when tested.

Section 23. CROSS-CONNECTIONS OR PHYSICAL CONNECTIONS WITH OTHER
WATER SUPPLIES.

1 The definitions, standards, requirements, and regulations set forth in the Oregon
Administrative Rules pertaining to public water supply Systems and specifically OAR 333, Division
61 are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference.

14



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

?2) Customers shall complete, sign, and return to the District a water use survey when required
by the District Cross Connection Program Director. Failure to do so may result in the Shut Off of
water services by the District.

3) All Backflow Prevention Assemblies installed in the Customer’s water line shall be a type
and model approved by the District and Oregon Health Authority Drinking Water Services.

“4) Any mobile unit or apparatus that uses District water or water from any Premises within the
District shall first obtain a permit from the District and comply with all applicable restrictions and
pay all applicable fees.

(6) The District shall not be responsible for loss of pressure caused by the installation of a
Backflow Prevention Assembly.

@) The Customer shall provide adequate protection against Thermal Expansion. All costs
associated with Thermal Expansion protection will be the financial responsibility of the Customer.
The District shall not be liable for any damage occurring from the Customer’s failure to provide
adequate protection against Thermal Expansion.

8 The Customer is responsible for all Cross Connection control within the Premises, which
shall be accomplished through Point of Use Isolation and Backflow prevention adhering to Oregon
Health Authority Drinking Water Services installation standards.

9 All costs associated with purchase, installation, inspections, testing, replacement,
maintenance, parts, and repairs of Point of Use Backflow Prevention Assemblies are the financial
responsibility of the Customer.

(10) All Point of Use Backflow Prevention Assemblies must be registered with the District.
Registration shall consist of the date of installation, make, model, size, serial number, and location
as well as initial and subsequent annual test reports.

(11) In event the Degree of Hazard of a Cross Connection on a Customer’s service is determined
by the District Cross Connection Program Director to be a Health Hazard, the following
requirements shall apply:

(a)  Auxiliary Water Supply—A reduced pressure Backflow Prevention Assembly shall
be installed directly downstream of the service Meter unless the following information is
supplied by the Customer to the District:

(i) Written documentation from the Oregon Water Resources Division of well
abandonment consistent with all applicable rules and regulations.

(ii) Signed affidavit and a site inspection conducted by the District’s Cross
Connection Program Director that there are no direct connections to the District
water supply System. The Customer shall be responsible to notify the District prior

15



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

to any changes being made connecting the Auxiliary Water Supply to the Customer’s
service line and the District’s System.

(b) Other Health Hazard classification—A reduced pressure Backflow Prevention
Assembly shall be installed directly downstream of the service Meter.

(c) Additional -costs incurred to install, maintain, and test a reduced pressure
Backflow Prevention Assembly shall be the financial responsibility of the Customer.

(12)  Annual testing and repairs of Point of Use Backflow Prevention Assemblies shall be done in
accordance with OAR Chapter 333, Division 61 and the following requirements:

(a) Backflow Prevention Assemblies shall be tested upon installation and at least
annually thereafter by a state certified tester. Any Backflow Prevention Assembly found not
functioning properly shall be promptly repaired or replaced at the Customer’s expense. If
such Backflow Prevention Assembly is not promptly repaired or replaced, the District may
Shut Off water service to the Premises. The District may set fees by resolution to cover the
cost of this service.

(b) The District shall have the right to demand proof of liability insurance, errors and
omission insurance, and confined space entry training from certified testers working in the
District.

(c) The Customer shall be responsible for submitting annual BAGKHOW test reports to the
District by the date mandated to avoid Shut Off. Test reports must be fully complete and
shall be submitted to the District office by mail, email, or fax.

(d) The District’s Cross Connection Program Director shall approve the type of test
report forms.

(e) When using a Double Check-Detector Backflow Prevention Assembly, the Meter
shall register accurately for only very low rates of flow up to three gallons per minute and
shall show a registration for all rates of flow.

) A Reduced Pressure Backflow Prevention Assembly shall include properly located
test cocks and tightly closing Shut Off valves at both ends of the assembly.

(13)  All plumbing and plumbing fixtures within buildings shall be installed and constructed to
prevent pollution of the District or Customer’s water supply by Cross Connections. Water service to
any Premises known or found to have such defects and hazards shall be disconnected and not
restored until such defects and hazards have been eliminated.

(14)  All structures and/or Premises served by the District shall adhere to the Cross Connection
Prevention Program adopted by the District. The District shall Shut Off water service to Customers
found in violation of the Cross Connection Prevention Program regulations. Water service shall not
be restored until such violation has been corrected.

(15) Whenever it is necessary to conduct an inspection to enforce any of the provisions of this
Ordinance, to connect, disconnect, turn on or turn off a water service, or whenever the District has
reasonable cause to believe that there exists on any Premises any condition that is unsafe,
dangerous, or hazardous to the public water supply System, District personnel may enter such
Premises at all reasonable times to inspect the same or to perform any duty set forth in this
Ordinance. If the Premises are occupied, the District personnel shall first present credentials and
request entry; and if such Premises are not occupied the District personnel shall first make a
reasonable effort to locate the owner or other Person having charge or control of the Premises and

16



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

request entry. In the event the District requires access to any portion of the Premises beyond the
Meter, and if the Customer refuses entry to that portion of the Premises or if the owner or Person in
control of the Premises cannot be located in a timely manner, the District personnel shall have
recourse to a warrant or other remedy provided by law to secure entry. The District is not required
to obtain a warrant before entering any portion of the Premises upstream of the District’s Meter or
before temporarily shutting off the water supply at the Meter if necessary to maintain the safety of
the System. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as imposing upon the District the
obligation to or liability for inspection of any apparatus on the Customer’s Premises, since such
liability rests with the Customer.

Section 24. WATER FACILITIES IN GENERAL AND MAIN EXTENSIONS.

1) When a subdivision or partition is developed, the Developer shall at their expense upgrade
or install new water distribution and transmission facilities required to serve the development
pursuant to this section. Upgrade of existing mains shall be a condition of development for the
construction of a single house on an existing lot if the District determines this will be in the best
interest of the System and . if required by the fire department for fire protection service. All
materials and installation shall be in accordance with District Construction Standards,
Specifications, and Details.

?2) The District shall pay for the cost of water supply, pumping stations, storage facilities, and
Transmission Mains included in the District’s approved SDC Capital Improvement Plan, which the
District determines are needed for the conveyance of water within the District. It shall not pay for
pumping, storage, or other facilities needed to serve a limited or local area. Those facilities shall be
paid for by the Person or Persons requesting them.

A3 Except for Distribution Main upgrades included in the District’s approved System
development charge Capital Improvement Plan, the District shall not pay the cost of main
replacements, upgrades, extensions, or the cost of relocating existing facilities to accommodate or
serve additional Customers, properties, tracts, or subdivisions. Such upgrades, extensions, or
relocations, when requested of and performed by the District, shall be paid for in advance by the
Developer requesting the same at actual cost, plus twenty percent (20%) for administration.

“4) The costs of Distribution Main extensions, upgrades, and water facilities required as a
condition of approval of development to furnish water to Premises, developed or not, shall be at the
expense of the Developer requesting such services.

Q) All such main upgrades, extensions or relocations shall be made by the District or by a
contractor approved by the District in accordance with District Development and Construction
Standards. Engineering designs not prepared by the District shall be submitted to the District for
plan review and approval prior to any construction.

6) The District shall determine the size of mains required. Necessary fittings, valves, valve
boxes, and fire hydrants required shall be included in the cost of main upgrades and extensions.
Required main extensions or upgrades shall be installed along the full frontage of the property to be
served to permit ready connection by adjoining properties. Main extensions or upgrades for new
subdivisions shall extend the entire distance between opposite boundaries of the subdivision and
shall be located within public rights-of-way unless the District determines it necessary to construct
water lines in easements across private property, which determination shall be in the sole judgment
of the District.

17



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

@) Except for mains funded by SDCs, Developers requesting main extensions or fulfilling
obligations to construct water facilities shall pay the full cost of the installation. The size of the
main required by the District will be based upon the needs of the development being served, the
type of the land uses and building types, fire protection needs, and the integrity of the District water
distribution System.

)] When the Developer requesting extension or upgrades of water mains elects to have the

District provide the engineering design, the Developer shall pay a deposit equal to the full amount
prior to any work being done on the upgrade
or main extension.

9 When the Developer requesting extensions or upgrades of water mains elects to have their
own engineer design the water main extension or upgrade, they will place a deposit with the
District. The amount of the deposit shall be established by District resolution and will cover costs
for plan review, construction inspection, as-constructed drawings, map updates, legal review, and
other related District expenses. The Developer shall make full payment of the deposit before
starting construction of the upgrade or main extension. If the actual cost of the District work
exceeds the deposit, the Developer shall pay the excess cost to the District prior to obtaining final
acceptance and water service. If the actual cost of the District work is less than the deposit, the
District shall refund the difference to the Developer within thirty (30) days after determination of
the actual cost.

Section 25. OBLIGATION TO CONSTRUCT WATER FACILITIES; SECURITY;
ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS.

1) Whenever a developer or property owner, herein referred to as “Developer,” develops
property in the District, such Developer shall be responsible to assure that all extensions, upgrades,
or modifications to District facilities shall meet the terms, conditions, and construction standards
specified by the District.

2) No work shall be performed on any portion of the District System unless the Developer has
obtained express written permission from the District to do the work prior to commencement of the
work, and has complied with all conditions contained in such permission, including without
limitation, securing a construction performance bond.

A3 When a Developer has an obligation to install or upgrade water facilities imposed by this
Ordinance or as a condition of a development permit, the obligation shall be confirmed by filing an
acknowledgment with the District and shall be fulfilled prior to connection to the System unless the
District has granted a waiver of this requirement in writing.

(a) The acknowledgment shall state the nature of the obligation, the time within which
the obligation is to be met, and identify the property subject to the obligation.

(b) The acknowledgment shall include any necessary temporary construction and
permanent easements for water main construction on private property. All permanent
easements shall be recorded with the following wording: “The property owner shall be
responsible for and shall bear the expense and/or replacement costs of fences and/or
landscaping in all public easements when said fences or landscaping must be removed for
access to utilities. The property owner shall grant to the Rivergrove Water District
unobstructed access to water mains and facilities.” Permanent water main easements shall

18



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

not be less than fifteen feet in width unless the District has granted a waiver in writing of
this requirement.

(¢) The acknowledgment shall include an engineer’s estimate of the cost of installation,
including the cost of restoration of easements or rights-of-way, and a security deposit in an
amount equal to 120 percent of the engineer’s estimate.

(d) The security deposit may include a sufficient performance bond, cash deposit, or
letter of credit as security. Return of security deposit shall be conditioned upon Developer
fulfilling its obligations to the satisfaction of the District.

(e) If the District determines that a Developer has failed to fulfill its obligations, written
notice detailing the failure and stating the District’s intention to use the security given to
complete the obligation shall be mailed to the Developer by first class mail delivery
confirmation.

4) Upon receipt of written notice to the District that the public water facility has been
completed and is ready for final inspection and acceptance, the District shall within ten (10)
calendar days make such inspection. If the District finds the work to be acceptable, a final
certificate stating that the work has been completed and is accepted shall be issued.

5 As an additional and separate part of the acknowledgment, the Developer shall agree to
maintain the public water facility for a warranty period of one year following written final
acceptance by the District, to include but not be limited to repair, replacement, and all things
necessary to insure the operational integrity of the water facility, and shall provide the District
security in the amount of 10 percent of the cost of the improvement to insure the fulfillment of this
obligation.

(6) Instead of the security and installation requirements of subsections (1) through (5) above, a
Developer may pay a Fee In Lieu Of Performance to the District. This lump sum payment to the
District shall be in the amount of the engineer’s estimate of cost of complying with subsection (1)
above and shall be approved by the District Engineer. The charge per linear foot shall be consistent
with current installation prices if the District were to perform the installation.

Section 26. CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS.

0} All water line construction and installation of services and equipment, with the exceptions
noted below, shall be in conformance with current District and City of Lake Oswego Construction
Standards, Specifications, and Details, copies of which shall be maintained at the District office.

2) Design of System improvements shall consider provisions for extension beyond the
development to adequately grid or loop the System for purposes of water service reliability and fire
flow. Dead-end mains normally will not be allowed, but when they are permitted, a blow-off
assembly will be required. The mains shall extend just outside the edge of pavement to facilitate
future extensions. Where water mains are expected to be extended, isolation valves shall be
provided near the end of the dead-end main to avoid future water service interruption to Customers
while mains are being extended.

3) All construction materials, service lines, and Meters used shall be approved by the District
and be of first quality, and consistent and fully compatible with the existing System so as to permit
the District to apply uniform maintenance, repair, and replacement thereof.

“) New service lines shall not be less than one inch (1) in diameter size from the main to the
Meter Box.

19



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

5 All new Meters installed shall be at least one inch (1) in size.

(6) Fire hydrant model Watrous Pacer with integral Storz adapter shall be the approved fire
hydrant model for the District.

@) The Meter Box shall be a composite box measuring 13” x 24” and any other additional
specifications for the Meter Box will be in District standards.

3 All new Distribution Mains, including Developer and District-constructed extensions and
upgrades, shall be a minimum of 8 inches (8”) in diameter and consist of Class 52 ductile iron pipe
with restrained joints, unless otherwise approved by the District’s Engineer.

&) A Developer may request a Variance from these requirements pursuant to the process set
forth in Section 33.

Section 27. WATER MAIN EXTENSION-COST REFUND.

1) Pursuant to ORS 264.320, any Person required by the District to pay the cost of upgrading
or extending a water main adjacent to property other than their own so that water service is made
available to such other property without further extension of said main, shall be entitled for a period
of ten years after the date of the installation and acceptance of the said water main upgrade or
extension, to claim a refund of a pro-rata share of the initial cost of the main upgrade or extension
by an adjacent property owner, which shall be paid prior to such Service Connection. The amount
to be refunded shall be determined by the District and such determination shall be final. The pro-
rata reimbursement shall be based upon:

(a) Total linear frontage of the property served in proportion to the total linear frontage
of all property abutting on the street, road, or right-of-way, within which the main upgrade
or extension was made and which was benefited thereby; or

(b)  Any other reasonable basis that equitably distributes the cost of the main extension to
the benefited properties.

?2) When upgrades or extensions described in subsection (1) are installed, the owner of the
other property shall pay to the District, prior to receiving water connection or service, the pro rata
portion of the upgrade or extension to be refunded, and the District will refund the payment to the
Person owed the refund. In the event of failure of the District to collect the payment, the Person
owed the refund shall have a claim only against the other Person for the refund.

Section 28. ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES, RATES AND CHARGES.

1) The Board shall adopt and may thereafter amend by resolution the actual charges, rates, and
fees for the use of the System and for other materials and services provided by the District in
connection with the System. The Board hereby adopts the following charge classifications:

(a) Administration Fee. A - fee assessed to projects for District services that include
District inspection, operation, and administration services.

(b)  Bulk Water Usage Charges. Charges relating to the temporary use of District
equipment to enable water service to be temporarily obtained from a fire hydrant, including
the permit fee and Usage Charges.

(c) Delinquency Notification Fee. Charges relating to any Customer whose account has
been determined delinquent for Water Service Charge, Usage Charge, or Deposit Charge,

20



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

and 1s notified by letter or door tag the District will be implementing Shut Off notification
procedure as listed in Section 10.

(d) Development, Review, Inspection, and Acceptance Fee. A fee reimbursing the
District the cost incurred for plan review, legal review, engineer review, construction
inspection, as-constructed drawings, map updates, i, water testing assistance,
chlorine disinfection and testing, and other District related expenses for new services or
projects.

(e) Installation Fees. Fees for direct connection to the System or for enlarging or adding
to the Service Connection, which increases the potential flow into the Customer’s Premises.
These fees consist of the following:

(i) Drop-In Fee. A fee which includes materials and labor required to install
Meter, Meter Box, and associated administrative costs. District personnel shall
perform this part of installation.

(ii)  Permit Fee. A fee assessed for the administrative cost of staff to process
permits.

® Dispatch Fee. A fee assessed to delinquent Customers when operational staff leaves
the District office to proceed with District Shut Offs.

() New Service Fee. A fee assessed for the administrative cost of staff to review and
determine applicable requirements and approval process for new services and/or projects.
(h) Non-sufficient Funds (NSF) Fee. A fee assessed to a Customer for a check or
Autopay which is returned or declined due to insufficient funds, a closed financial account,
incorrect account number, expired authorization date, or other similar reason.

(i) Public Records Fee. A fee assessed for administrative cost of copies, production,
and research involved in request for public records.

3g) Reinstatement Fee. A fee assessed for bringing a water service that has been
terminated to a regular service status.

(k) Restoration Fee. A fee assessed to a Customer for the replacement of a Meter that
was removed by the District due to a violation of SECTION 17(1) of this Ordinance.

1)) Service Delinquent Fee. A fee assessed to Customers whose accounts have been
designated delinquent due to non-payment of Water Service Charges or Usage Charges.

(m)  Shut Off Lock Destruction Fee. A fee assessed to Customers who cut off the Shut
Off lock, destroy it, or turn the water back on without District approval.

(n) Stop Payment Fee. A fee assessed for processing a stop payment on a check to a
Customer due to loss or misplacement.

(o) System Development Charge (SDC). A reimbursement fee and/or an improvement
fee assessed or collected at the time of increased usage of a capital improvement or issuance
of a connection permit. System development charges are separate from and in addition to
any applicable assessment, fee in lieu of assessment, or other fee or charge provided by law
or imposed as a condition of development. SDCs are established and updated by District
ordinance.

(p)  Trim Fee. A fee assessed to Customers who have - permitted landscaping or
other obstructions to impede free access to District water Meters, Meter Boxes, Curb Stops,
or Appurtenances, and do not remove them upon request.

21



2)

Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

(@) Usage Charge. A charge for the amount of water delivered to the Customer’s
Premises.

(r) Water Service Charge. Charges for provision of water, for the fixed and
maintenance costs of having the water System available to provide water, for Meter reading,
preparing the bill, accounting for the receipt of payment, maintaining Customer records, and
responding to Customer inquiries.

(s) Deposit Charge. A fee assessed to Customers with an Active Account which shall be
paid within five (5) business days of activation, will be kept in an interest-bearing account
with interest earned being property of the District, and will be applied to unpaid customer
obligations or refunded at the time of Discontinuance or Termination of service.

Except as specifically provided herein or by resolution, all charges and service fees shall be

due and payable within fifteen (15) days of billing for provision of service.

©))

It shall be unlawful and a violation of this Ordinance for any Person to use or maintain

connection to the District System without paying the appropriate charges and fees established herein
or in any resolution adopted pursuant hereto, or to fail to pay such fee or fees on time.

“)

Nothing contained herein shall in any way limit the right of the District to bring a civil

action for legal or equitable remedies or damages in connection with failure to pay, or late payment
of any charge or fee established herein or the right of the District to Shut Off or Terminate water
service. The expense of shut-off or Termination, as well as the cost of restoring service, shall be an
obligation of the owner or Customer and shall be recoverable in the same manner as other
delinquent charges and fees.

Section 29. WATER SERVICE CHARGES; WATER USAGE CHARGES.

0y

The Water Service Charge is an ongoing charge that pays for the District’s operation and

maintenance of the System.

2) The water Usage Charge described in (1)(q) is imposed when a Customer uses water from
the System.
3) Timely payment of the Water Service Charge and Water Usage Charge are the joint and

severable responsibility of all Customers associated with the account for a given Premises. For
multi-tenant property served by a single Meter, the owner shall be responsible for all charges.

Section 30. METER READING AND BILLING.

Meters shall be read at regularly established intervals as determined by the District and bills

for water provided shall be based upon consumption to the nearest 100 cubic feet of water provided.

Section 31. ADJUSTMENTS OF ACCOUNTS.

1)

The District may adjust a Customer’s account under any of the following circumstances:

(a) Bills for a portion of a billing period shall be prorated based upon the actual days of
use.

(b) If a Meter fails to register, registers inaccurately, or for any reason cannot be read,
the District may compute the bill based upon average consumption during the preceding two
(2) months, the usage at the same time twelve months prior, or in the absence of such
consumption history, the average consumption of a similarly situated Customer.

22



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

(c) If a Customer has discontinued an account with a balance due and the Customer
applies for or maintains a different account, the balance due from the discontinued account
shall be transferred to the Customer’s active account and must be paid before initiation of
the new service. The District may Shut Off water service to the Premises associated with the
second account if all amounts due are not paid. The District’s failure to collect amounts
owed before initiating new service shall not constitute a waiver of the District’s right to use
any available remedies under this Ordinance or Oregon law.

(d)  The District recognizes that leakage at a Customer’s Premises may occur and offers
to the Customer the ability to apply for a leak adjustment credit. The intent of the District’s
Leak Credit Policy is to provide some financial relief to Customers who receive a water bill
at least three times the amount for the same period in the prior year or the last three months
average if residency is less than one year due to a water leak on the Premises.
(i) A water leak or water leakage is defined as any water lost on the Customer’s
side of the District’s water Meter resulting from a condition where repair and/or
replacement of infrastructure (service line or interior plumbing, etc.) is required to
terminate the water leak.
(ii)  To qualify for a leak adjustment credit, the leak has to be located in the
underground main service line between the Meter and the Premises, or in piping
concealed beneath a building or inside of building walls. Leaking faucets, toilets,
water softeners, and irrigation systems, as well as accidental over-watering are
ineligible. No consideration will be given for irrigation leaks or water features
(fountains, ponds, pools, and hot tubs.)
(iii)  Water usage resulting from conditions that did not involve repairs or
replacements (such as leaving an outdoor watering hose or irrigation sprinkler
system on too long) are not eligible for a water leak adjustment by the District.
(iv)  Any District Customer in good standing may apply and be considered by the
District to receive an adjustment to their current water bill according to this policy.
v) To be eligible for a water leak adjustment, the Customer is first required to
promptly resolve the water leakage at the Customer’s own expense. The District is
not fiscally responsible for repairs or replacements needed on the Customer side of
the District water Meter.
(vi)  Once the repairs are complete and within one billing cycle of when repairs
have been made, the Customer is responsible for requesting a water leak adjustment
in writing on the approved District form that can be obtained at the District office or
through the District’s web site at www.rivergrovewater.com,
(vii) The Customer’s leak adjustment request must include a statement of where
the leakage occurred, receipts from the repairs, and what steps were taken (what
work was done) to terminate the water leakage.
(viii) No more than one water leak adjustment shall be granted to a Customer
during a rolling 24-month period.
(ix)  Upon receiving a water leak adjustment request, the District will calculate a
water leak adjustment credit of up to 50% of cost of the amount of water lost. The
water leak adjustment credit excludes the fixed service charge(s) portion of the bill
and normal historical water use during the billing period. The Customer’s cost for

23


http://www.rivergrovewater.com/

Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

infrastructure repairs (materials and labor) or damage done to other property as a
result of the Customer’s water leak is not eligible for reimbursement by the District.
(x) If the water leak adjustment credit is approved by the District, it will be
applied to the Customer’s account as a credit on their next regular monthly water
bill.

(xi)  The Customer has the right to appeal the District’s leak adjustment decision
to the Board at its next regular meeting.

(xii) The Customer may appeal the District’s decision to the Board when the
District determines that the Customer does not qualify for a leak adjustment or if the
Customer disagrees with the amount of the leak adjustment.

(xiii) A Customer who elects to appeal the decision must notify the Water District
Manager of their desire to appeal by submitting a written request. The Customer
must indicate the reason for their appeal and include information supporting the
appeal. The District will notify the Customer of the date the Board will consider the
appeal. The following information is required for an appeal:

1. Customer’s name, address, email, and phone number.

2. A copy of the water bill(s) in question.

3. A copy of the completed leak adjustment form (including receipts).
4. A copy of the District’s decision.

5. The Board will review the Customer’s appeal at the next regular
monthly meeting. The District will convey the Board’s decision in writing to
the Customer within thirty (30) days of the review. All decisions of the Board
are final.

Section 32. PROHIBITED CONDUCT.

0} It is unlawful and a violation of this Ordinance for any Customer to commit or cause any of
the following acts:

(a) Wasteful or improper use of water during times of water shortage due to drought,
damage to the System or supply capability, or unanticipated substantial demand which
threatens the supply or pressure capability of the System, or some combination of the
foregoing. Wasteful or improper use under this paragraph shall include, but not be limited
to, the use of water at times or in a manner, which is prohibited by the terms of any Board
rule, which may be adopted by resolution.

(b) Use of an apparatus, appliance or other equipment which utilizes District water
service where such equipment is dangerous, unsafe, or violates District ordinances or
regulations.

(c) Excessive demand for water service by a Customer which results or may result in
inadequate service to other Customers.

(d)  Obtaining water or other service provided under this Ordinance by false or
misleading acts or statements.

(e) Damage, destruction, alteration, interference with, connection to, or tampering with
District equipment, including but not limited to the breaking or destruction of seals,
destroying District Shut Off locks, breaking District Curb Stops by turning on and off the

24



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

water service, and damage to a Meter resulting from hot water or steam from the Customer’s
Premises.

® Except by specific written agreement from the District, the resale of water supplied
by the District or the delivery of water to Premises other than those specified in the
application for service.

(g) Except as needed for extinguishing fires by approved fire departments or as
expressly permitted by the District, the operation, alteration, change, removal, connection,
disconnection with, or interference in any manner with any fire hydrant in the District.

(h)  The unauthorized connection to or turn on of any water service where such service
has been disconnected or Shut Off.

(i) Except by means of an approved metering device or by express authorization of the
District, the use of any water from the System.

Gg) The further use of District water service after the date shown on a request for
Discontinuance of such service without a request for and approval of resumption or
restoration of service.

(k)  Violation of any provision of this Ordinance.

2) In addition to any other remedy provided by District ordinance or state law, violation of any
provision of this section is a civil infraction and subject to civil penalty in the amount of $500 per
violation.

A3 In addition to any other remedy provided by District ordinance or state law, where the
violation of this Ordinance results in damage to or destruction of District property, the District shall
have the right to recover the reasonable value or cost of repair or replacement of the property, plus
twenty percent (20%) of such amount and any legal costs and attorney fees incurred by the District
to recover.

4) Whenever it is necessary to perform an inspection to enforce any of the provisions of this
Ordinance, such as connecting, disconnecting, turning on or off a water service, or whenever the
District has reasonable cause to believe there exists on any Premises any condition that is unsafe,
dangerous, or hazardous to the System, District personnel may enter such Premises at all reasonable
times to inspect the same or to perform any duty set forth in this Ordinance. If the Premises are
occupied, the District personnel shall first present credentials and request entry. If such Premises
are not occupied, the District personnel shall first make a reasonable effort to locate the owner or
other Person having charge or control of the Premises and request entry. In the event the District
requires access to any portion of the Premises beyond the Meter and the Customer refuses entry to
that portion of the Premises or if the owner or Person in control of the Premises cannot be located in
a timely manner, District personnel shall have recourse to a warrant or other remedy provided by
law to secure entry. The District is not required to obtain a warrant before entering any portion of
the Premises upstream of the District’s Meter or before temporarily shutting off the water supply at
the Meter if necessary to maintain the safety of the System. Nothing contained herein shall be
construed as imposing upon the District the obligation to or liability for inspection of any apparatus
on the Customer’s Premises since such liability rests with the Customer.

5 In addition to any other remedy provided by District ordinance or state law, the District may
Shut Off or Terminate water service to a Customer for noncompliance with any provision of this
Ordinance. Noncompliance with this Ordinance means failure or refusal to remedy a violation or a
repeated violation for which written notice or warning of such violation has been given either by

25



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

delivery in person, by posting on the property, or by first-class mail delivery confirmation. If such
noncompliance affects matters of the health, safety, or security of the System, or other conditions
warrant such action such as wasteful or improper use of water, the District may Shut Off or
terminate water service immediately.

Section 33. VARIANCES.

1) The District may grant a Variance from the requirements of this Ordinance in the District’s
sole discretion. When considering a Variance request, the District may consider all applicable
factors including, but not limited to the following:

(a) Whether the Variance is necessary to prevent unnecessary hardship;

(b)  The physical circumstances of situation involved;

(c) Whether the situation was created by the Person requesting the Variance;

(d) Whether the situation is the result of circumstances the Board determines are beyond
the control of the applicant/land owner; and

(e) The economic impact on the applicant if the Variance is denied.
Section 34. ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL.

(1) Except as otherwise provided in Subsection (2) of this Section, any Person aggrieved by a
ruling or interpretation of and is requesting a Variance from the provisions of this Ordinance or a
review of such ruling or interpretation, shall submit a written appeal to the District not later than ten
(10) days after the ruling or interpretation. The appeal shall:

(a) Set forth the facts and circumstances leading to the appeal of the rule or
interpretation at issue;

(b) Include the nature of the ruling or interpretation from which relief is sought;

(c) Provide the impact of the rule or ruling on the appellant; and

(d) Include any other reasons for the appeal.

Failure of an appeal to conform to the requirements of this subsection shall be grounds for
dismissal of the appeal.

2) In the case of appeals of disputes concerning Water Service Charges or Usage Charges, in
addition to the requirements of Subsection (1) of this Section, the following provisions shall apply:

(a) Unless otherwise directed by the District, where a Shut Off notice concerning the
disputed Water Service Charge, Usage Charge, or Deposit Charge has been delivered as
provided in Section 11, water service shall be discontinued unless the written appeal is
accompanied by a deposit in the full amount of all disputed charges.

(b) Such deposit shall be in addition to any applicable appeal fee.

(c) Upon the disposition of such appeal either by the District staff or upon appeal thereto
by the Board, that portion of the deposit which is determined to represent correct charges
shall be paid to the appropriate District account and that portion of the deposit which is
determined to represent incorrect charges shall be credited to the Customer’s account or, if
appropriate, returned to the Customer.

A3 The Water District General Manager shall review each complete appeal request. The
Manager may request additional information from the appellant and from District’s records.

26



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

) The Water District General Manager shall render a written decision on the matter within
thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete appeal.

5) The Water District General Manager’s written decision shall be mailed or delivered to the
appellant.

6) If the appellant is dissatisfied with the Water District General Manager’s decision, the
appellant may appeal the matter to the Board. Such appeal shall be in writing and shall be actually
received by the Board within ten (10) days of the date of mailing or delivery of the Water District
General Manager’s decision.

@) Failure of an appeal to conform to the requirements of this Section shall be grounds for
dismissal of the appeal.

)] The Board shall review the written appeal of the Water District General Manager’s decision
and any written material submitted by the Water District General Manager as well as the ordinance,
rule, or decision at issue.

&) The Board may schedule a hearing by written notice not less than fourteen (14) days in
advance to hear the testimony and further information.

(10) The Board may uphold, set aside, or modify the decision of the Water District General
Manager.

(11)  The decision of the Water District General Manager may be rejected or modified only if:
(a) It exceeds the authority of the District; or
(b) It was based upon an incorrect interpretation of law or ordinance; or
(c) It was not supported by substantial evidence in the record.

(12)  The decision of the Board shall be made in writing and sent to the appellant not more than
sixty (60) days from receipt of the appeal to the Board.

(13) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this section shall not apply to civil infraction proceedings
initiated by the District to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

(14) Except as otherwise provided in Subsection (2) of this section or as directed by the District,
an appeal of any ruling or interpretation to the District or the Board shall not stay the effective date
of a District decision to Shut Off service.

Section 35. COLLECTION OF ACCOUNTS.
1) In addition to, and not in lieu of, the provisions of Sections 10 and 11, the District may
pursue collection of delinquent accounts in any manner provided by law.

?2) In the event account collection shall be necessary, the prevailing party in such collection
proceeding shall recover its costs and attorney fees at trial and on appeal.

3 If District incurs charges to assist in the collection of an account governed by this
Ordinance, including but not limited to attorney fees and fees to transcribe or register judgments,
such collection fees shall be the responsibility of the Customer.

Section 36. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

1) In consideration of use of the System all Customers of the System, all contractors who may
perform work on the System in any manner, and all other Persons or entities whose actions may

27



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

affect the System shall indemnify and hold harmless the District, its officers, employees, and
representatives from and against all suits, actions, or claims of any character or nature brought
because of any injuries or damage received or sustained by any Person or property or alleged to
have been so received or sustained on account of the actions or failure to act of such Customers,
contractors, or other Persons, their subcontractors, employees, or representatives. Such
indemnification shall include the costs of defense of such claims including attorney fees.

?2) A Customer or connector to the System does not thereby acquire a vested property interest
in continued use or connection to the System. Such use or connection is conditional always upon
such Customer or connector complying with all applicable terms and conditions contained in this
Ordinance as well as all resolutions adopted pursuant hereto and, further, upon compliance with all
federal, state, or local requirements that are or may hereafter be imposed upon such Customer or
connector. Nothing contained herein shall require the District to provide service or access to the
water System to such Customer or connector when the District has determined that the public
interest requires a limitation on such water service or access.

A3 The invalidity of any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, or phrase of this Ordinance or
any resolution adopted pursuant to this Ordinance or incorporated herein, shall not affect the
validity of the remaining portions thereof and a reviewing court shall sever the offensive provision
so that every other section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, and phrase of the Ordinance shall
remain effective irrespective of the invalidity of any other provision.

4) All complaints and special requests for service, and all other matters, upon which action by
the District is requested or sought, shall be presented to the District in writing. The District need not
consider any request or complaint not so presented.

Section 37. REVISION AND MODIFICATION OF RULES, REGULATIONS, AND
CHARGES.

Rate and charge schedules of the District shall be adopted, modified, revised, added to, or
deleted by the Board by resolution. Increases in rate schedules shall be made only after public
hearing as provided in ORS 264.

Section 38. PRIOR ORDINANCES REPEALED.

District Ordinance No. 10-01 is repealed.  District Ordinance No. 19-01 is repealed.

Commissioner moved to adopt Ordinance 23-01 seconded by
Commissioner . The motion passed and was adopted this
day of , 2023.

Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners

Chair

28



Rivergrove Water District
Water Service Ordinance 23-01

Attest:

Secretary

29



2023-04 RESOLUTION FOR “SIGNING AUTHORITY FOR BANKING
AND OTHER FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS”

WHEREAS: the Rivergrove Water District recognizes the organization would
benefit if a control authorization policy were in place to delegate the authority to
sign banking and other financial documents,

WHEREAS: all duly elected officials and the General Manager of the Rivergrove
Water District are entrusted to ensure sound financial controls are in place,

WHEREAS: the Rivergrove Water District is determined to grant signing authority
to certain person(s) described hereunder,

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of the
Rivergrove Water District formally authorizes and empowers the officers of
the Board which positions are defined as Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer and
the General Manager with the legal authority to sign banking and other
financial documents on behalf of the District.

This Resolution moved by Commissioner

seconded by Commissioner , and adopted by
the Board of Commissioners of the Rivergrove Water District this day
of 2023 by the following vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Signed: Chair

Attest: Secretary



NEW BUSINESS



https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https%3A%2F%2Fw7.pngwing.com%2Fpngs%2F901%2F674%2Fpng-transparent-man-holding-papers-businessperson-cartoon-flyer-cartoon-books-in-hand-painted-glasses-middle-aged-business-people-watercolor-painting-company-hand.png&imgrefurl=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pngwing.com%2Fen%2Ffree-png-baftp&tbnid=nUZPAW_det7GRM&vet=12ahUKEwjJ7q_B1JHtAhV0PH0KHaZKBPAQMygdegUIARCBAg..i&docid=jiNX1Bf6YaKurM&w=920&h=1204&q=business%20papers%20cartoon%20images&ved=2ahUKEwjJ7q_B1JHtAhV0PH0KHaZKBPAQMygdegUIARCBAg

ATTACHMENT No. 4

Rivergrove Water District

Resilent Backbone and AC Pipe Replacement Program

Conceptual Cost Estimate - 10/23/2023 REVISED

Construction Cost Estimate

Total Cost/Dia.

Pipe Run Diameter Inch Total Cost/LF LF Direct Cost Notes
P-3 12 74 S 888 1,700 S 1,509,600 Arterial Street, ERDIP
P-4 10 67 S 670 670 S 448,900 Neighborhood Street
[Total 2,370 $ 1,958,500
|Tota| Project Cost Estimate % Direct Total
Planning 3.0% S 58,800
Design/Engineering 20.0% S 431,200
Construction S 1,960,000
Const. Contigency 10.0% $ 196,000
Labor Standards S 15,000
Environmental Review 3.0% S 58,800
Project Management (AIS) S 15,000
Legal 1.0% S 19,600
Cultural 1.0% $ 19,600
Permitting 2.0% S 39,200
[Project Total $ 2,820,000
Direct (Construction w/ 10% Contigency) S 2,156,000
Indirect 31% S 664,000




\ % = ——Lc 1 I '
TL
HILL I HAVEN ST.
| ——
BLACK [FOREST oT. "ﬁ
\kQ\Q WILLOW LN\J O [@) .
Q- —r\[\ =
e sy WATER
S
cITY
MAINTENANCE 17579 . 2
BUILDING 7555175 h533| 4| 17554 > L.0. ASSEMBLY o DIS' I ‘RI( :' I \
5 17595 WY. 7175 CHacel = =
70 = ]
o 2 S —] L JAGKSO —_— '_OI 2 G
L N D) = SQUAR 17651 (117552 17635, R =
~ . © Z ey ARTS § N (e) B - N
Lt
SOUTHLAKE G E MAINT. 25 26 17659 17650 >[ y[17es6 ' '
CENTER © MERIDIAN SQUARE OFFICE 5 18 20 §§ %g i = (i) 17653 ¢ 1 <
17 19 21 22 59 7685 1 17684 [17681 | & 17608 L
. &
[ ] e gl s | — & SYSTEM MAP AUGUST 2022
L) = TIGARD [ 17760 5405 | & a f§‘u I o
e ] ® (7750 JEAN [RD 17770 & 7283 I 17768 17763 5| [ 17762 <
° - 17780 % .
sy ® 77— UEAN [OF ) gy poe . s y FIRE Sections. 17,18,19 & 20, T2S, RIE, W.M. Clackamas County, Oregon.
S L 7 7777 2000 cee Tee E S STATION
r = . .
S - e — vee Sections. 13 & 24, T2S, RIW, W.M. Washington County, Oregon.
) 5550 2 i R R 5100 g (7
g g ® | 17840 < 5| g s
BRIDGEPORT IONEERE DESION w8 8 e | e | | 17830 e :
VILLAGE MALL COMMERGE CENTER 17902 o ] | 1750 fi7a3 = | 17848 ez Y
: 0] % 5513 5501 - LS l JEWEL LN. <
17910 NI %
Y | 17898
17928 | O e H 17898 5100 17835
ROYA ) i
. 17924
17934 —
{ R EL’ . o — BRYANT GRADE WALUGA JR.
% <7950 S H o SCHOOL
0 17968 I 17048 P HIGH SCHOOL
Q 2
N 18050 18096 (18098
Al BEMOL & 5590 \\l 17956 18045
* N S l - <
N 9 (}o-s0- 18108 18106| 18104 | &
= E ® | [ 18010 3 [18017 | 18011 l i>:18050 18060 18055 L%
. z L -
& =] 2 Qe |is014 5397 _l ©
N Clo g glgl23e 5495 | 5463 | 5431 5365 () 8 |52 2 | 2 | s,
o = S8 18026 TREE 5333 3 ST| ¢ | &
& BURGER = 4 il — — —ese—— 5043
L [ W)y, [18027 - — 00 P = —
(I [G] B
o[z L W\W| § 8 22 oo r INTERTIE WITH LAKE OSWEGO
7 5|2 g | g 18088 g =1 o ¥ | | S | ¥ |50%
@
5 N & 5% 8124 & e 18121 | ®|5277 § % Z 5001 | @
& 7, ol o 18200 ® ] o
m <] o 9
so0| sox3~| 5[ [ 8 g2 g g g lg @l 2| glg ® alg | 1m33 TU. .Lfl AL | 5081 2
o 22|83 8 2238 5481 | 5467 | 5420 J? o
S .K.E. .N-; KENNY | sT. 5293 SI8E HTE G L
S 3 D e = JR— VP 2o|TCe & | el 5o =
f ~i(e0) 26138 (6116 | 18231 | [18220 9 oo - = el L | S 9
g o e 9 @ <
®| @ I 5450 F & 9 o N N | 5040 5139 =
S 62103 6150Y az57 \ 18241 | J1g038 ~ GG §|g| 520 |of BB | B |R x
) 18408 I \JERRY CT. / - ° 3 S145 [ 5143 m €
18275 18244 5341|5333 | 5311 | 5275 T 8 & CIR
Q\Qﬁ 18420 18307 s487 NUALATA CT. ij 18360 18305 [ 48306 9
18315 — &
& s, | 18318 | 15307 | (61 lm ; 18308 o —oo—__o$ 18327
\/V‘ BN 18440 15519 <13315 5486 253 o ) 18924 SANDPIPER
18485\, // 18341 J S S — 18350 s34e | 5332|5314 5220 | | | 1t 5111 =
IS N Z 2| 125 | 60s3 18344 e = S . V% % 4
18543 \ 7 18369 5481 | 5431 5329 | 5267 kol — — 9 9
[/) 6 Vg/g@\f\* 18474 —0ee— SILET, 5390 | 5377 CHARLETON. | | [ 56, [ 166 g 7| 1840 =
Z. & IS 9 N AN\ 1841 ;Es'j Efs?z(:?OKsossg : iy @ | g e | o
Q Y, & - = 18476 L]
<<%7 J 5;}«, ( 18998 18515 [ 18520 E = 18518 @ﬁ gj&b 5430 Nl || 18470 | 18444 \18477 | 3 .
¢ & 18621 2 | qgaz0 |18535 __—J [ L& | 18435 5322 | 5266 | o avoo |+ | 18492 K,
i Z 1 ) 18538 = X |Z 18430 Q & > 1
& 18651 , 18543 \ Y\ resse oRating a2 (3 1840 |® 18544 Z
d : 18660 135555 . va002 | 15505 I b 18455 l O 18470 5341 = - * pown 7 18640 18547 %; £ W
646 : = < — &
(S 18690 (6345 O | T [ . ol 18495 18609 X CHINOOK ‘ 8555 L 18550 “ 9% . B
Sl o H e | | | S0 7 T eee— S o @ || . & %
EDFE‘ O[: e = 6175 w3 || | 4 2 % T sore & T rm > 1eess gss —|| )iesss o) [ 4 %
6195 =
g § 202 88| & es00fST 19590 18645 IRy R\ | [Siees2 18639 | 15695 gla (g |8 b4 > %
. il Bl Rl el 6286 0700 6242 ¢ \. = —O—esel 18653 H 8 [3 |8 |8 | iaser [o 18700 = ' STREET
18728 3] a2l 212 ) X ® q o =
g- 2R g a3 6345 6237 8|2 8 18733 : § % § § 18698 18667 18707 l a | o 3 > =
= - - D
N _S_I : 6228 ® -8 ” o [18767 I 1e752 | s8es - il I o 18744 i i ! ggETEé’# ® g8 : % 5 RE
8 &
,\fiE_WAN ﬂ_ RD. @l 18788 % 31al3 I wez | 3| 9|9 . 7% CHuRcH T e — 1] = <y
D 5 gl e S| 8|3 heres|@ =
T © P 5288 ENTER WOQD C/@ :
28 & |8l % 816 regoo | 7 = —=vseem = Oogb=—ysoy : wo |2 [ ||| %022 ' VALVE CLOSED
ol ° & | 18809 | U [18806 nsso7 | T 18802 2 T R 5433 | 5421 ® Lo END OF MAIN
: l T srsolB |8 (B[ 8 [ § QL eenl Loat o |o597 | 557 | sos - s P H M
INTERTIE WITH E OSWE 2] s ] 2 e 1852 S “ulefos |8 ] 8 DL LEAE_ST. || 18820 18833 | M) & & | & | ST A ager
6267\ X | § | % |sss — | [ress0 e — —evoo— — —— ® g 2 | 4769 8859 18857 (18855 | 18851 griAN | cT.
| = o [18318 19839 6" FS o 18851 - T RED INDIAN - DOVER WY.
= 6262 ———"——OI = 2 ° ! | ® | 5430 | 5424 | 5366 |2 5270 - 90 0— — 18802 |18863
= WAVZATA BT o * [18s03 IR HES 18881 | @ & |[s3s o —1 [r=see— — fpasc . i
- P I e B3 RIVER GROVE 18851 g 80 == E:“ TRANJFER™
Lace , o AR AENEREEE: 6216 18920 | [l 3 | [rBs%0 5 = I ELEMENTARY 18830 18911 18970 5290 g tasaa 18805 | [TO0) | 18893 | OLSON\WELL N
5 oS Yesg Moz ela |83 3@ o To | @ [1go29 (1] 77 |8 (5] | 18022 SCHOOL 18940 f— N X ; — ! 18892 i PUMP STATIO
N AL/ o o w — " & | R heoes|,[6 B |e—— & l 5850 18965 | 18953 | i 18866 | 18929 reeo2 fisazs | | 85 |[% HENE
£a —ooe © o8 | o £ — 5 | [18926 gl Grls | & 19965\ 18985 | fseor | 3761 | 3707 | 3665 RESERVOI
? DAWN BT. T~ —- = 18997 | | J1e9s2 paoss | 1| 1058 @8 | [ 19020 |53 5203 | 5215 > Z 18051 | [2189%6 | 189295 o 5 (XXX) a9l
- < e ([ 3122282 /8 /8 T haono J— ‘fﬁ g g = i o Y e OLSON o | cT, (1,250,000 GA
=| = g élE|RIJ| e IR 8 2 6182 57 R ® o [ o | 5355 - $Z 1] [918954 1595 Y| @ 18950 8 [ % |2 loe 0000000 — = = ) ( ) )
= B/ 8 3 3 & /) 19019 19010 ® 000 | & | & 9|8 g sl “ 5 soss |57 || 21 I8 (xle 1215 [ = —essce = LeKE oswecd
MRS = =
= Sf wrs | $f 2 | 2 %, | 8342 7 19032 19060 19032 19043 DAWN ST T N A | 18978 18971 | [18978 ac o2 i s | || 18975 . €] comy
7, Q % a|=/e® 6327 | 40° s068 > |19943 | | 5829 | 5807 r‘ A e e 47?3 19021 & > o SIOERERE § § < Bil < 3758 | 3710 | 3660 | 3620 Wi e
Bd iy : 18325 6354 ® 4, \ 5861 BENFIELD ? 19064 = = e e e e . —0 0 9 Do 19026 | 19021 B 8985 <| || 15000 — ELL NO.2
MV crgn 000-80) 64071 N e Yo/o129 [ AN erie - —— 19050 @ - 19028 DLD| CATE__RD.
423 ?E 18308 \. \g\% § 2® N\ % %, \ L —09 @ o | @ 5290 5 5190 a a R ——— - y— — e XXX ) —00 00 19010 I 2060
©) 22| [2] e ANl [N 5864 T CT.[ o (st Z s |3 &gl _|° g a 19060 . 19041 | 9| 19044 190856 88
) 382 2 o128 | 19131 I 19134 32 | @ S 19100 . R & |i00n ° 19067
N 6545 _H %60_» 19158 6132 o S ® 5300 5226 5180 19100 . ks S é g A & 4 g -~ 19030 9021 m
e 7S - 19229 N 19163 | || 19158 5869 gafé 19166T3 IE—— z | 3 I ° g 19120 10125 | 1 Er7an(\N op rRD. ©
| © . 5 19150 , 2z 19019 19040 :
|, DNy o= SEMc . ./ NN 6247 = ~—L 5 ® 8|8 5330 @ 5170 19200 19130 \\ T | @ (o 19042 19053 |£/18810
, I A N 5221 | 19211 | o|% a2 o — ‘ WELL NO./1 / = ] z 18812
INTERTIE WITH TUALATI ~ 8559/ 6550 WS i 6266 -\ H 19239 19200 5311 19203 | 19200 fyg50¢ b5 19160 B : = s e 3995 10158 Slg | 19167 | 19114 Glel 1125 l S
63, 6248 6218 119237 | || 19242 sazs | ©l . 2 > e 19057 | || 19168 S(3 <o S
~~i : J 5860 26— | 19240 T 19200 e | 19220 10 ° o 19177 &
WALL - DEED RESTRICTION glaglzlz2[=]|gPH ol w 19255 o | 500 ||, Ligges | o2 B | \\ ) z | o2 [T 19201 5 [$
- oy =3 = N J S N N = %) -A
\ e S e cﬁm AL [ 2 |3 [ se1s | 5755 | 19200 22| q ) B | o | 19263 of2 % =\ 19220 p— 19230 | 7% |98 2 || 19198 | 10226 G| | 1238 19208 5
il X X X ——— S & a 5301 10285 © glg || o > = 2 ™ s401 /I
~— —O-l:()—_—___.o 8,\93& 3 {9\3 2 2 > 3 ® l ® ®
AST RGWD SERVICE ON CHILDS RD — CHILDS RD. I CHILDS RD. A=, gj" o > ° 5 a8 ¥ 19240 3951 | 3811 3o | 190 19269 | 19244 $ 3335
g s - Sreve @rpL ] RESERVOIRS
N =) | B | ‘ —— — — — = —_— ooe 900 l 3285
6010 5910 5790 Al | 8 oy s ®) &
19317 GlEe | 8 19305 | o5 5185 | 5011 { i—
][ s> || 5184 5004 | 2 c ¥,
? ! 19333 — —0/19313 = K 5173 | 5 £ % % % Wi ] 19330 4045 4007 |3977 | |y, 3931H|§9DO§ §8Ds§ égﬂ o0 N0 [ 10407 %, NO.1&2
g : 19354 | 19353 ® g1033 :J § 8§ §§ &£ >y -~ | <>( 19364 E4s N. - 19416 . O¢ (620,0 0 GAL)
(=] a
5740 | s710 [Ji —= ! | 19350 19415 = = D e 8&6\% o160 2167 035 P02 | o w37 |1 |2 \(ALVE CLOSED, SPLIT , Siov'e i id © 19412 —{&° 19419 o.\ 000 OF 3365 0D
419 0 W 19416 [119417 Z|e | 19420 19m3 | € & [IE s326 28 51 5047 5040] 8 I = \ : 19398 & fo) g 2 R
LEGEND DISTRIBUTION MAINS: e - | 2 ___Es:i 19451 9%« 19533 80> || 5148 seoToh 1 = HIGH/LOW SYSTEM . @ [ag60 4038 | 4004 [3962| 396 (79) 3006 | 3852 | 3822 [|1942¢ [ oo 19431 & 3440 2PN
2o IV NN VAN, b S 19438 | 19444 19452 Zesd 2 |l — o[ < L IN LS < 10428 |® g - ~
— D 19357 |19345 J€ J¥|| 2 - ® O ® 3682 /3694 ° °
. . . . ) N o 5 w9 1%y 506 = 4039 | 4015 . 19445 ®
District Service Boundary —— Size Code 10463 || [Pros6s | Lo AT [oa 19475 NS ol R 2| 2| 83 Lo \ 75| 3959 & | \ 3957 DR [ /e 1944 o| e NN SSGUHEINNGNNGS
14" ccc000e , — ' 19481 | 19484 219363 | & = E el OHO o ule 19457 & sy 19457 e 9 gl e S ‘ '
. g " ) L \ ¢> 19487 [ ——— § 19308 3 5 B ©o—B Ole 3687 / (0-3 19455 T 3200 Mg 3220
District Per Metro—RLIS (6/17) I E—— E— 12 se0000 N a D | Si94010 L Eg : 19490 4018|3938 2o | \sea5 [10469 3699/, O3
- g | . L%y, = o0 1819404 5162 & 4072| 4032 i 7 sng | 19477 19468 .
10” eecee A N ~ 3 3 0 : OR ’ % § .85 I Eg ) 952432 Z 19481 5 e S22E L / 35 Ll>J ®
o o - )
Pressure Zone Boundary » 2, TN IR G Y < ¢ 16379 6376 3 - S i © =
8 eeoe e, s/ g/ 8 = = o2 @ 5320 =
| — - 6" eoe : & YIRIE 0-. ANNERL : . " 3250 B8O
Lake Oswego ,, JHDiE JHHE IR « 1] P-3: Canal Rd. to Indian Creek Ave. = [
- = — ) Y 19875 353 [a] 8 3 ®
i - . 1/ —] T e ooy b B & 1,700 LF of 12" ERDIP (O C ROW I
Tualatin 3 . : — o = —00Guhop y@) < | & 0 (Open Cut @ )
E—— < P-4: Childs Rd. to Dawn St / I~ % |4 = ’
- = - -4. : : ALAT, == M f is within high liquifacti hquak ' DI
Riverarove City 2 LATIN oy, 1825 /s|,[, [.T. T ===—] Most of area is within high liquifaction zone so earthquake resistant
——— 670 LF of 10" DI (Open Cut @ ROW) | 3 JHHHHENF oy - - —
0] 8 1] " : o
— - 812, | 4 pipe is recommended. ERDIP does not come in 10" so upsize to 12". & —
—— | T — 1 e S .. . . . . . ’
= Upsizing also provides more capacity if the other crossing fails. N\

Ductile Iron Pipe or Other

— ==
_ SOURCE WELLS:
Asbestos Cement Pipe ~  -———————- Name Nominal Pump Rate Maximum Authorized Rate ‘ —— ‘ e TTOW SVaTEM = -

. No. 1 520 gpm (0.75 maqd 600 gpm (1.34 cfs
Fire Hydrant 7@ No. 2 370 gpm (0.53 mgd 450 gpm (1.00 cfs - Em] - .
- Olson 350 gpm (0.50 mgd 400 gpm (0.89 cfs ' o - ‘ B
Intertie Total 1,240 gpm (1.78 mgd) 1,450 gpm (3.23 cfs) ~ ~ \ \
s g - DISCLAIMER

Private Well

O
® ?(——
Sample Station >[ORAGE RESERVOIRS: HYDRANT LEGEND: , [ THIS MAP IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY AND HAS NOT BEEN PREPARED FOR OR IS
Name Capacity e RGW Hydrants with Flow Data N SUITABLE FOR LEGAL, ENGINEERING OR SURVEYING PURPOSES. USERS OF THIS INFORMATION
SHOULD REVIEW, OR CONSULT, THE PRIMARY DATA INFORMATION SOURCES TO ASCERTAIN THE
o £ 5555

No. 1 120,000 Gal.
Blowoff RGW Hydrants W/O Flow Data 350 0 350 700 USABILITY OF THE INFORMATION. THIS MAP REPRESENTS THE BEST DATA AVAILABLE AT THE

No. 2 500,000 Gal. )
Lake Oswego Fire Hydrants E‘I TIME OF PUBLICATION. WHILE REASONABLE EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE TO INSURE THE
Tualatin Fire Hydrants

Valve No. 3 1,250,000 Gal.
Total 1,870,000 Gdl J ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION SHOWN ON THIS PAGE, RIVERGROVE WATER DISTRICT
’ ’ . SCALE IN FEET ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR USE OF THIS

On Low Pressure System s64x ACTIVE SERVICES (1,380)

®@ 0 O

[’ INFORMATION.

J:\Data\RGWD\ _Genlnfo\Systern Maps\CAD\07—0876—401—0R—MAP—22—RH2.dwg 350 SCALE 8/17/2022 12:13 PM CGOHEEN



Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
1,288ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
1,978ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
776ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
1,713ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
671ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
1,583ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
869ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Callout
P-3: Canal Rd. to Indian Creek Ave.
1,700 LF of 12" ERDIP (Open Cut @ ROW)
Most of area is within high liquifaction zone so earthquake resistant DI pipe is recommended. ERDIP does not come in 10" so upsize to 12". Upsizing also provides more capacity if the other crossing fails.

Kyle Pettibone
Callout
P-4: Childs Rd. to Dawn St.
670 LF of 10" DI (Open Cut @ ROW)

Kyle Pettibone
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 3

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
1,619ft 

Kyle Pettibone
Polygon Line
474ft 


EXECUTIVE SESSION

All documents are considered privileged information, contents shall
not be discussed with any person outside of Executive Session, and all
documents shall be returned at the close of the meeting.




RECONVENE
REGULAR SESSION

(Board to consider action on any items
referred from Executive Session)




CHAIR REPORT



https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https%3A%2F%2Fimages.all-free-download.com%2Fimages%2Fgraphicthumb%2Fset_of_business_woman_image_vector_551001.jpg&imgrefurl=https%3A%2F%2Fall-free-download.com%2Ffree-vector%2Fbusiness-woman-cartoon.html&tbnid=QDKzaIZ98ayFiM&vet=10CBcQMyhyahcKEwjIxYzZypHtAhUAAAAAHQAAAAAQAg..i&docid=c3P9ajvfcn_GuM&w=300&h=368&q=business%20pages%20cartoon%20images&ved=0CBcQMyhyahcKEwjIxYzZypHtAhUAAAAAHQAAAAAQAg

ADJOUNRMENT

‘Everyone here? Good. Meeting
topic: Setting world record for
shortest meeting. All in favor say
aye. Ayes have it. Meeting over”


https://www.google.com/url?sa=i&url=http%3A%2F%2Fshortjewishgal.blogspot.com%2F2012%2F12%2Fmeeting-adjourned.html&psig=AOvVaw0hNCtQJ8Gk_gyiq7DPS6JJ&ust=1610224204362000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCICq9-OWje4CFQAAAAAdAAAAABAc

	October District Report
	October 2023 Board Package
	October 2023 Board Package
	Binder8
	Binder7
	Binder4
	Binder1
	October Agenda
	September Meeting Minutes
	October District Report
	September 2023 Financials
	Reconciliation Summary Sep 23

	Resolution 2023-04 Signing Authority

	Balance Sheet Sep
	AR Sep
	Revenue Expense Sep
	Sheet1



	Check Register Sep


	Proposed Ordinance 23-01
	Section 1. Purpose.
	Section 2. Definitions.0F
	Section 3. SYSTEM Ownership.
	Section 4. Water System Operation.
	Section 5. Responsibility and Liability of the District.
	Section 6. Use of Water.
	Section 7. Furnishing Water.
	Section 8. Water Service Application and Connection.
	Section 9. Discontinuance of Service by Customer.
	Section 10. Delinquencies and Subsequent Shut off of Water Service by District.
	Section 11. Termination of Water Service by District.
	Section 12. REGULAR SERVICE.
	Section 13. extraterritorial water Service.
	Section 14. Bulk Water Service.
	Section 15. Fire Protection Service.
	Section 16. Contracts/Special Services.
	Section 17. Interruptions in Service.
	Section 18. Pressure Regulation.
	Section 19. Leakage within Premises.
	Section 20. Service Connections.
	Section 21. Meters.
	Section 22. Maintenance, Repair and Testing of Meters and Mains.
	Section 23. Cross-Connections or Physical Connections with Other Water Supplies.
	Section 24. Water Facilities in General and Main Extensions.
	Section 25. OBLIGATION TO CONSTRUCT WATER FACILITIES; SECURITY; ACCEPTANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS.
	Section 26. Construction Standards.
	Section 27. Water Main Extension-Cost Refund.
	Section 28. ESTABLISHMENT OF FEES, RATES AND CHARGES.
	Section 29. Water Service CHARGES; WATER Usage Charges.
	Section 30. METER READING AND BILLING.
	Section 31. Adjustments of Accounts.
	Section 32. Prohibited Conduct.
	Section 33. Variances.
	Section 34. Administrative Appeal.
	Section 35. COLLECTION OF ACCOUNTS.
	Section 36. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.
	Section 37. Revision and Modification of Rules, Regulations, and Charges.
	Section 38. PRIOR ORDINANCES REPEALED.

	Cost Estimate
	CI Map
	Title Pages
	CALL TO ORDER PAGE





